Haringey Counci NOTICE OF MEETING

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee

TUESDAY, 4TH SEPTEMBER, 2012 at 18:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Allison, Brabazon, Dogus, Reece, Solomon, Stennett and
Waters (Chair)

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will
be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at
item 12 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
consideration becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’ judgement of the public interest.

4. MINUTES (PAGES 1 -8)
To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 17 July 2012.

5. MATTERS ARISING



PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT: CHILDREN AND FAMILIES (PAGES 9 - 34)

To consider performance data for looked after children as at the end of July 2012
including quarterly adoption scorecard.

7. ANNUAL REPORT OF THE FOSTERING SERVICE (PAGES 35 - 46)
To receive a report on performance of the service over the last 12 months and details
of key service improvements in place.

8. DRAFT PERMANENCY POLICY (PAGES 47 - 64)
To consider a draft policy setting out the Council’s approach to addressing the key
issues that impact upon the achievement of permanent care arrangements for
children.

9. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of items 10
and 11 as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act
1985): paras 1, 2 & 3 namely information relating to any individual, and information
likely to reveal the identity of an individual or information relating to the financial or
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information)

10. FOSTERING MARKETING AND RECRUITMENT PLANS (PAGES 65 - 90)
To consider the costs and outcomes of the fostering service marketing strategy and
marketing plans for past and future years.

11. VERBAL UPDATE ON CHILDREN'S HOMES INSPECTIONS

12. DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING
8 October 2012, 6.30pm

David McNulty Ayshe Simsek

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services  Principal Committee Coordinator

5" Floor Tel: 0208 489 2965

River Park House Fax: 0208 489 2660

225 High Road Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ 25 August 2012



Page 1 AMgrenda ltem 4
MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COM TEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

Councillors Allison, Brabazon, Reece, Solomon and Waters (Chair)
Apologies Councillor Stennett

Also Present: Councillor Egan, Rachel Oakley, Chris Chalmers, Lesley Kettles, Shanti
Jacob, Marion Wheeler

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CPAC1 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from ClIr Stennett, Debbie Haith
and Libby Blake.

Clir Egan attended the meeting for Clir Stennett.

CPAC2 | URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business

CPAC3 | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest put forward.

CPAC4 | MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on the 19" March 2012 were agreed as
an accurate record of the meeting.

CPAC5 | MATTERS ARISING

The committee were keen to see the follow up letter sent to schools in
relation to the expenditure of the looked after children’s element of the
Pupil Premium grant. Committee Members, who were also school
governors, commented that that had not yet seen any correspondence | Attracta
relating to expenditure on LAC and felt that this was a key issue to follow | Craig
up on. Agreed that a copy of the correspondence be emailed to
Committee Members

Agreed that the contact number for Kate Cairns be supplied to Clir | Attracta
Brabazon. Craig

CPAC6 | TERMS OF REFERENCE

The committee were asked to note the terms of reference for this
committee which were agreed by the Cabinet in June 2012. The
committee were able to recommend any required changes to the
Cabinet for consideration.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

The report advised that the Cabinet were able to establish advisory
committees and provided some background for the reasons behind the
establishment of the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee as well as
providing an update on the recent governance review which had
examined the role of the committee.

In view of the governance delivery group’s, previous intention to
decommission the Corporate Parenting committee and given the
Scrutiny Panel for Children’s services had developed a work
programme there was discussion about whether the Corporate
Parenting Advisory Committee would be handing over to the Scrutiny
Children’s Panel or continuing to work separately to the Scrutiny Panel.
The membership of the Children’s Scrutiny Panel contained members of
both Corporate Parenting and Children’s Safeguarding Policy and
Practice Committee indicating preparation towards this change in
committee structure.

The Chair clarified that the committee would not be working in
‘handover mode” as this was a Cabinet advisory committee and had
distinct responsibilities from a Scrutiny Panel. The work plan of the
Scrutiny panel could be looked at to ensure that there was not a
duplication of work. In relation to the governance review
recommendations, these did not indicate that the Corporate Parenting
Advisory committee would automatically be decommissioned after one
year as there would be a review. The Corporate Parenting Committee
was responsible for monitoring children and young people in care and
ensuring their life chances were maximised in terms of health,
educational attainment and access to training and health and this would
be considered as part of any review. The governance review
recommendations were subject to change, as previously experienced,
and therefore the committee should continue working as a Cabinet
Advisory committee until further notice. To allow members of the
committee to further discuss their concerns and suggestion for improved
working of the committee, the chair agreed to have a separate informal
discussion with them at the end of the meeting.

CPAC7

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT : CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Members of the committee considered the headline performance data
for looked after children as at the end of May 2012. There was a further
breakdown enclosed of the performance where the indicator showed a
performance lower than the target which had been set.

Overall the committee were concerned about the format of the report as
the figures in each row did not seem to add up and further explanation
was required about the performance figure with some background
information.

OP148 (Care leavers in education, employment or training). It was noted
that the figures in the report were not up to date and it was agreed that
more accurate information advising the number of care leavers in




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

education, employment and training would be sent to committee g:”s

. almers
members by email separately. It was also noted that the recently
obtained aggregate quarterly figure for this indicator was just above
target at 77.6%.

OP147 (Care Leavers in suitable accommodation) The committee were
advised that these figures should be interpreted with care as the
percentages were based on small numbers. For example at the end of
April, two young people were counted as not being in touch. Currently
one was still termed missing and the other had been found suitable
accommodation. The committee were interested in returning to the
subject of transition to understand the potential impact of the welfare
reforms on care leavers and also requested a further update on the
support provided to care leavers to tackle isolation. The report should
include information about the support in transition. As an initial response,
the committee noted that the council was one of the few authorities
providing supported accommodation with a live in volunteer. 8ﬂglsmers
The committee agreed that a report come back to committee in

September on Transition taking the above comments into account.

OP391 — (Timeliness of placements of looked after children for adoption
following an agency decision that the child should be placed for
adoption) The target was to complete three adoptions at the end of May
and one had been completed. Although a small number this would still
bring performance down. The performance in Adoption was due to be
discussed at agenda item 9.

OP386 - (Children in care cases which were reviewed within required
timescales) The committee were informed that there were technical
problems with capturing this data and the service were working to get an
accurate figure. This discrepancy had been realised from manually
checking the figures. The service was working with IT to resolve how the
data is collected from Framework | correctly as this was key
management data. The committee noted that if a case was not reviewed
within the allocated days but considered 1 or 2 days later this would still
show the target as not being met. The committee were reassured by the
Head of Service for Safeguarding Quality Assurance& Practice
Development that following the manual check on the figures she was
confident that there was not a significant issue with the completion of Rachel
these reviews. The technical issues were expected to be resolved by | oakiey
September and the committee requested an update on this at their next
meeting.

HY34 — (Percentage of social work posts permanently filled - annual
indicator) The service was meeting this target with only a very small
number of agency staff. A question was asked about the graduate social
work scheme and it was noted that the service was on its last intake of
graduate trainees as this scheme would not continue, due to budget
reductions, in the forthcoming year. However the service had a good
established working relationship with Middlesex University and would
notify their graduates of any work opportunities. There were also a




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

more social workers available for posts compared to a few years ago
also enabling the permanent filling of posts.

OP409 — (Foster carer recruitment) The committee agreed that they
wanted a wider update on Foster care recruitment and requested a
report to committee in September which should include:

Progress on how the consortium is working

Drop out rates

Costs

Situation regarding the poaching of potential foster carers
Understanding how many foster carers live in the borough and
who they work for

Any other relevant statistics.

YVVYVYY

A\

The performance figures should also distinguish between the number of
kinship and stranger foster carers recruited as requested at the last
meeting in March.

OP389 (No of Children in care including unaccompanied asylum seeking
children) the figure for May stood at 562 and previously in December
2011 this figure had been 608. The Committee were keen to get the
background on this significant reduction in number and understand the
factors contributing to this. Also it would be useful to compare this trend
in relation to last year to gain a further sense of the significance of the
changes made and understand if there had been a shift in the
management of risk. Agreed that an email be sent to members of the
committee providing this requested information. Since the meeting this
matter was resolved and the change in the numbers understood from
looking at previous performance reports. Therefore this query was
withdrawn.

OP419 (Number of children missing or absconded from care at any point
of the month) There were two under 16 LAC children missing, one of
which was an unauthorised absence and the other was missing. There
was due to be a strategic discussion on the missing young person this
week where an immediate course of action would be agreed following
sightings. The committee noted that the Cabinet Member for Children
would receive weekly updates on missing children and absconders from
care.

Chris
Chalmers

CPACS8

INTERIM INDEPENDENT REVIEW OFFICERS REPORT

The committee received an interim report from the Independent
Reviewing Officers service for looked after children. The report
contained initial findings on the work of the service for the period up to
March 31%' 2012. A full report was expected to be produced in
September 2012.




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

The legal context within which the IRO (Independent Review Officers)
operated was set out. Recent regulations had strengthened the role of
the IRO and further enabled their independence to challenge and
scrutinise children’s cases to ensure that the child’s interests were
protected throughout the care planning process.

Currently there were seven IRO posts of which three positions were
covered by agency staff and these were in the process of being
permanently recruited to. In response to a question about the
relationship between IRO's and social workers, it was noted that social
workers valued the independence of the IRO as they understood that
their advice and direction was in keeping with the best interests of the
child/young person.

The IRO’s had completed a number of audits throughout the year and
were able to use the information collated to understand if there were any
emerging themes about the care of looked after children and where
improvements could be made. One of their successful
recommendations was the Children’s service agreeing to pay a foster
care allowance when the LAC was still in education at 18. Also the
service supported LAC seeking to obtain indefinite leave to remain in the
country. The committee noted that the Children’s service did not pay for
naturalisation as this was a choice and it was more important for the
young person to be helped to obtain indefinite leave to remain in the
country. Members of the committee were interested in gaining a more
detailed understanding of the process that the service adhered to in 82”3

. . .. .. .. . almers
assisting LAC gain indefinite leave. Examining this process may help
gain an understanding of where local councillors can help in dealings
with the Home Office, on a political level, with more difficult cases.

The IRO’s facilitated Family Group conferences, a process led by the
family members to plan and make decisions for vulnerable child/children
who were at risk. This year, the IRO’s were aiming to increase the profile
of these meetings because they would help identify alternatives to foster
placements and adoption outside the family.

In response to a question, the advocacy role of the IRO was explained
as well as how their interaction with children/ young people on
understanding their wishes and views at LAC reviews.

In terms of the timeliness of assessments, decision making and action,
clarification was sought on whether forward planning had improved. It
was noted that there had been service wide training on the
effectiveness of early planning and the permanency policy to ensure
there was an understanding of how each service area contributed and
had a role in permanency planning for children in care.

The Chair and Committee thanked the IRO service for this useful and
insightful report.




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

CPAC9

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE ADOPTION SERVICE

The committee received the annual report of the Adoption service
which contained information about: how it functioned, was guided ,
regulated , the recruitment of adopters, preparation of applicants,
assessments for adoption, adoption panel working, current figures
relating to children waiting to be adopted ,staffing and key issues going
forward for the service.

The committee had already been made aware of the government’s
action plan for adoption which included speeding up the process for
adoption. To enable this there would be an introduction of performance
thresholds and a performance scorecard to track and profile progress.
The committee considered the current score card and were concerned
about the direction of the performance figures for the Adoption service
and whether reductions in the journey time to adoption could be
achieved. They noted that a DFE diagnostic team had visited the council
to complete an assessment of the current performance and its likely
progress to understand whether the council’s service would need to be
put into special measures. Following intensive interviews and an initial
draft report it was felt that the assessment had gone well.

As the council had a higher number of LAC they would consequently
have a higher number of children to place for adoption. This coupled
with the national problem in recruiting adopters and the mix of children
with differing needs would be acknowledged by the DFE in their
diagnostic assessment. Neighbouring boroughs were also facing similar
issues and would receive a visit from the DFE diagnostic team.

The committee learned that since January 2012 the Adoption Team had
been fully staffed as prior to this there had been staff on maternity and
sick leave. There was now an increased emphasis on seeking special
guardianships with two members of staff working on this. There would
be a high level of management monitoring to ensure that the targeted
number of adoptions occurred on a quarterly basis. There was an
adoption working party examining recruitment methodology, and
considering an enhanced role for the voluntary sector. The key focus
was timeliness and ensuring that this was given as equal importance as
the quality of the placement. This would be aided by the service having
improved data available to better manage performance. The Head of
Service for Children in Care was also examining past adoption cases to
further understand the factors involved in long running cases to inform
improving the timeliness of adoptions.

Further to considering the current Adoption Scorecard the Committee
were assured that Adoption was a key priority for the Director of the
Children’s Services. It was agreed that there be an update to committee
about the outcome of the diagnostic team visit as part of the Adoption
Action plan report.

Debbie
Haith




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 17 JULY 2012

CPAC10

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The press and public were excluded from the meeting for consideration
of the Following item as it contained exempt information as defined in
Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972(as amended by Section
12A of the local Government Act 1985):Paras1&2:namely information
relating to any individual, and information likely to reveal the identity of
an individual.

CPAC11

UPDATE ON THE CLOSURE OF COUNCIL CHILDREN'S HOMES

The committee noted that all the young people previously residing at the
council children’s homes had been suitably accommodated according to
their situation in required placements. Children’s Services were in the
process of handing over the buildings to Property Services.

CPAC12

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
The next meeting would take place on the 04" September 2012.

A member of the committee had received a complaint from a local
children’s centre who were claiming that they were unable to work
efficiently with families with risks as they did not have access to
Framework | system. This was disputed as the children centres
connection with the safeguarding and support service had been
strengthened. The children’s centres further worked closely with the
MASH (Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub) and were able to then further
direct any issues to Children’s Services.

Clir Ann Waters

Chair




Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



N Page 9 Agenda ltem 6

=

Haringey
Corporate Parenting Item
Report for: Advisory Committee Number:
04 September 2012 )
Title: Corporate Parenting Performance Assessment
Report . .
Authorised by: Eve Pelekanos/ Debbie Haith
Lead Officer: Margaret Gallagher / Ben Ward / Adele Cooper

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:

All NA

1. Introduction

This report sets out performance data and trends for an agreed set of measures relating to
looked after children. Section 2 provides an overall assessment of performance in the
service and performance highlights. Section 3 looks at the service implications of this data.
Appendix 1 provides a series of tables and graphs for each of these measures, grouped by
topic, showing monthly data, performance against target, long term trends and
benchmarking where applicable. It also contains performance and service comments for
each area to provide context.

2. Performance Highlights

= The number of children in care is reducing steadily, down to 551 from 574 at the end
of March 2012.

= Of the children becoming looked after, a larger proportion than last year were
previously subject to a CP plan (37% in the year to date compared to 23% last year).
This demonstrates that more children and families had been receiving social work
services before needing to be looked after and would indicate the appropriate use of
care.

= The proportion of children placed in Haringey provision has declined since April 2012
and is at 32.1% for July, below the 38% target. The percentage will fluctuate in line
with the numbers of children in care but foster care (in house) placements are showing

Page 1 of 2



Page 10

X

.

a reducing trend (from 187 in April to 168 in July). This issue is being addressed in the
Fostering Report being presented to CPAC.

= The percentage of up to date children in care visits continues to exceed the 95%
target.

= Indicators around stability of placements are in line with statistical neighbours.

= Performance on care leavers in suitable accommodation and in education, training and
employment are below targets set but monthly numbers are small and should be
interpreted with care.

= There have been 8 adoptions in the year to July and 14 special guardianship orders
(SGO) compared with 4 adoptions and 4 SGO'’s at this time last year.

= The adoption scorecard tracks progress on those children that have been adopted.
The average days from becoming looked after to being placed for adoption was 678
for the period April- June 2012. This is an improvement on the 2011/12 figure of 715
days but above the 639 day target (rolling 3 years) which is based on national
threshold levels for 2010/2013.

= The number of care proceedings that have been issued to date is 60% down on the
same point in 11/12. However, the number issued in July 2012 matches the number
issued in July 2011, this is being monitored in the monthly meetings with Legal
Services.

3. Appendices

= Appendix 1: Performance Analysis and Benchmarking

= Appendix 2: Adoption Scorecard - Quarterly Update

Page 2 of 2



Page 11

‘suesy 9|dwis ase podai siyl ul Bupjieuiyousq oy papiroid

sebeione 8] "YHOMSPUBA PUE 35804 WBYHBM YEMUINOS ‘WEeYSIMST ‘Y1oque ‘uoiBulst ‘Weyiny pue ylLUSISWWEH ‘ASUNOBH ‘UOIMUS8ID)
‘uopAoi) sesudwod pue sediAS S URIPIYD O} Ajeoiyoeds Buiejes uonewoul oIydeIBoWweP-0100S Lo paseq pa1siO Aq peulep st dnob
sinoqubleN feonsness s.Aebuler “sinoqubien feonsiels s,AebuleH Jo/pue uopuoT ‘puelBug 1oj papinoid st Bup eWYDUSY ‘BjdelBAR SISUM

‘Aueuenb pejepdn Ajuo s) S|U) 18y} 810U Bsee|d "ejepdn Aueuenb pieseloog uondopy ey ‘g xipueddy o1
Jejes eses|d ‘spjoyse.y) feuojieu jsujebe esuewioped pue BB [BNIXEIUOD ‘BupiEWIyOUS] ‘BlBP PUs] W18} BUO| JOYMNy 104
Jelje paxoo| Buios9q JO SYIUOW |2 UIUHM uoidope 10} pade|d 98ydo
pouad uj paidope usipjiyd 10} uondope lo) padeld Buleq o} Jale paxool Buiwoosaq woly skep abeisay S8V AH
uondope
lo} paoeld 89 pINous PIy2 By} 1y} uoisIoap Aousbe ue Buimoo) uoidope 1o} UBIPHYD JSYE PSX00| JO SjuaWwde|d JO SSaUlBWI] JN) 16£d0
siepio diysueipsenb |e1oads jo sequnN  aglLy dO
suondope Jo lequinN  egly dO
sJepJo diysueipsenb Jeioads/suondope Jo saguunN g1y dO
suepiQ diysuelprens) [eroeds pue uondopy

Buiuesy 10 JusiAoidws ‘UoIEINPS Ul SI8ABS} 818D gv1do
LIOITEPOLLILLOOO. S|GENNS U SIHABS| 8180 Jvido

SI6ABST 818D
Jusweoeld Jo yibual :usippyd 1aye pexooj Jo swuaweoeld 4o AigeIs £0doO
SOAOW JO JOqUINU UBIPJIYD IBYE Pay0o0) JOo siuswaoeld jo Alpgers Z9AH

SJUBLIBORI O ANNIGEIS - UBIDIIUD JoLY PeX00T]

$8|BOSBLI} PBIINDAI UM POMBIASL 8I9M UDIUM SISBD 818D Ul USIPIUD IN) 98840
Yiuow ayy Ui juiod Aue 1 a1eD WoJ) papuoosqe/Buissiw usIpiyo Jo JsquinN gLt do
(ua1pyo 4o "oN) ~patenu| sbuipsacoid sied  £1pdO

SUsiA aled Ul uaupiiyd  ggedo

uoIsinoid AeButier ui paoeid uaip)iyo o abeyusdied ZEAH

{swoy 1e peor|d Buipnjox3) 81ed Ul USSQ SABY UBIP(IYD SABD "ON |B101 8SHdO

ueld 40 013109[gns Ajsnoineid Jaye paxoo; Builoosq usipyy 10 ebejusdiey ¥1vdO
Uluow B Uey} SS9} 10} o) PAYOO| Usaq PBY OUM JSUE PaX00| 8g 0} PISESD OUM DY JO JOQUINN 16vdO
Jaye pa)oo| g 0} Buisesd uaipjiyn 91do

Jeye pexoo| Bulooseq usipiiyD Sipdo

dod 00004 Jod 8180 Ul UBIPIYD JO BRI UL BRSSO

usIpiiyo Bunjees wnyiAse pajuedwosoeun Buipniout 81es Ul usIpiyD 6840

AUAIOY pLe SBLUNJOA - UBIPIIYD JBljY PX0oT]

SjuUsjuoD

Bupjrewyouag pue sisAjeuy souewLIOpad *| Xipusddy

Radutaei

e bd BRI DD
Butsn souabijeius ssausng
pue ABs1eng AQ peonpoid




Page 12

\ €LeLoz

- & 00001 18d 818y | |
]Jm 66 89 ¢ rs g¢ 10 pugbu3| |
H R j 00004 49d 618y
& | 06 | 48 | & | *6 | % V]| smoqusen ponspeis
| Auo | B | e foa |- s s - dod 000 EMMM_MHM
{3 . .
' - 510 10 BGUINN
i “ 1SS | ¥.5 | 819 Les | z6¥ | Zlev fobuLe
| ™ na 4
s w.. 8188 5 g 1= (smek gism)| |
m - S Koo N S 5 2! pues uue; Buot| |
@ [ = = = ;
ovL &
“AjIUB) UMO 219U} UIUIM O} PBIED 8¢ JOUUED USIDIYD USYM Pasn
S1 815 JEY} 2INSUS 0} AljNjeIes paJoyuow BuIeq Sf UOIONP3. B4} JO SJB) PUE SIOqUINU oL "SeoiAes poddns Jo eBUe Japim e Jo uohejusWSdwL
sy} Buipniou; aoeid w1 1nd Buieq Loddns peseq ANUNWLWOD AjSWIL JO 1iNSal B SB POSEsIOap SABY USIP[ILD JOE PBYOO] JO SISqUINU 8y}

JUBWILIOY 89IAIeS

(65) oBeiane pueibug sy ueyy Jaybiy Ajueomubls pue (110

yose 1e se 0g) abessae sinoqybisu [EOIISHE]S Y3 uey) aybiy surewss 918l 8y -

TP ziunr gi-ReW  giady ZL-RN Zided gi-uer . (821) 4e0A 1sB| BWN) SIY} 0) pasedwiod uoioNpa.
e e _ ] x i wuedyiubis & ‘gL jo uoieindod 00001 40d 8Jed ul usIp|IYO JO 91kl B 0} satenbs siy] -

| ! - _m . o | L “1e9A 1SB| I} SIY} 8180 Ul 819M UBIPIIYD /29 (S10ujl pejuedwodoeun

2 8 b ; ﬁ i fad Buipnjoxs vg6) AIne J0 Aep 1Se| 8} UO 8180 U UBIPIIYD |GG Slom I8y -

1 M m w m ; & iy “ .ﬂ or jusUILIOD eouewIOHed |
| 23 '3 g '8 8 8| ;
4 9 “ 5 B I zer et | v f oo | oz | e | e dod 0000} Jed erey
i ” i 1 M _ “ L og Auo foBujreH
k b | ¥ s g ):21:-1q| DID JO BQUINN
* m 1 4 1 | 1 d L8| 16§ | G55 | 855 | 89S | vi5 | ¥8S | 009 KoBuien

5 H 1 1 i 4 g
# B | 4 - [ 5 & = m (= f
: i 1. w m € g : m g S g m ; (syiuow g 158}
N A O R i el it e fat SR s Kttt
1 h Y Fi

dod 000°0} 4d 180 U] UBIPIIUD JO 8181 BYL  BBEBEdO
uelp(Iud Bupiees wnjAse pejuediwiosseun Buipnjoul 8Jed Ul UsIPYD  68E€dO

P

{98ed0 ‘61¥d0 ‘£1pdO ‘28£d0 ‘ZEAH ‘85+dO) AuaoR 8a1MBS (7 LY ‘L6Pd0 ‘9L ydO 'GLydO)
SOOUBISWINOLD IS PUB S1BD JO N0 PUB Uf USIPIIYD JO Juswerow ay) (esgedO ‘68£d0) 9420 Ut USIPHYD JO SI8qUINU 8y} :seaie Bumolio) eyl Buiienod
‘Way} 03 PePIAcId 821AI9S 8L PUE LIOYOD B0 Ul UBIP|IUD 1Ua1iNd ey} Jo aimold e epiacid 0} disy yojym S3INSESW JO SBLISS B SUIBILOD UON098S SIU

e g ——r= - = M T T e —— e e e e e




Page 13

ase-

r0S2-

0S4~

0s

0%t

0se

0se

B R B ] ~ § s 8sBO.IOU] JON

R e e e R

_ R ] ] - ) ] (Buisesa)

6z2- | 612- | 80z | ziz- | sz [ snogubien 1815

(Buy06q)

- 68L | 9tz | e6L | 261 | 80T |V smnoqubieN 18IS

2 ~ _ ~ _ _ osee108(g

Lo e . - / 858840U) 16N AobuLBH

Aluo 18- €5¢- | voe- - - S = (Buisead) Aebulrey
eeq 18 S¥e LIE = S - - (Buiwooeq) AeBuueH
& Fy 3 m 3 m m g w = {seak g 158])
; w‘m ) il R - ) A > |1 8| 3 2 pue) uiey Buoy

‘siaquusw Ajjwey yum oAl 03 Bujuinal sie uasp|iyo sreudoidde sism pue uondopy pue diysueipiens) (e1oads se 4yons sjuswuebueie aied
Jusuewlad aiow 03 Buiaow sie udIp)iyD suejd a1ed jo Juswabeuew AjowWIl BI0W Ul PAYNSSI SBY SWES] YJOM [B100S Wial Buo| aul Ut Ajigels

JUBLLLIOY) BJIAIeS

81ep 0} 48k By} Ul UBIPHYD €2 AQ PaseaIDsp SByY HoYoo auy| -

"Jaye Payoo|

9 0} PASESD SARY 8/ PUE SIEP O} JBaA 8L} Ul J81je PBYO0| 8LU08q BABY URIPIYD GG -

Sb- “JoYe PaXy0O0| 8Q O} PBSES0 G puUR AINM Ul JSYE POY 00| SWBISq USIPIIYD G| -
g6 JUBWILIOY 8ouBWIONS
Jo—— ~ ~ _ . . _ esr8iosd
: »- £ 01 9 & i1 6 B, sevasous son Aotusr
G ol fuo | 8+ | e | v | o | e | o | e {Buiseso) AeBuney
S

N B0 | o | ot | o | ov | o 6 6l - (Buiwooeq) AsBuliey
e AR BT B e
L R I B i (B R WS FER

o = ,
Jiaye pe)ooj eq o} Buiseeo ueipiiyd 81$do

pue

Jeye pexoo| Bulwoodsq uespud  GLydo

)



Page 14

—

8jqissod se e1ep
01 dn pue e)8jdwos se st ejep Buiiewydusg Jey) 81nsud o} BUILUBOS JUBWILOIIAUS JBinBai o%eLspuUn
souabijeiu) ssauisng pue ABo1R11Q "JOIEdIPUI SIY 10§ BUDNIBWIYOUSY 9|QRIIBAR OU AjJUSLIND SI 819y}

‘usyeuspun Buleq a1em SJUSWISSISSE

1SIIYM Bpew aq pinod sjuswsbuELIE 9JBS SANBUISYE S19M 9JED 0} SUOISSILLPE WIS} LOYS JO JagWnU 8y} BUionpa) uo pasnooy Sey 9oIAISS 8y

Ziung zi-Rew  zi-dy  ZlJe Zi-ged  Zi-uer

ik ¢ i

(3
k43
143

kL

8

juswiwo) 8dINeS

"Jeak 1se} pousad awes ay) 40} 8¢ 0} paiedwod sye payoo| 8q o3 Buisesd
810j8Q UIUOW B UBY) SS3] 10} JOYB POY00| US9Q SABY USIP|IUD 9 ‘91D O} JeaA sy} | -

JUBLiWIO) eoUBULIOHed

(1884 snojpe.d)
9 91 zt 4 ANy
[ . .
=13 ? m g| 188 SNOJAGIY
s - = -
AlUuO
e1eq 0 S 0 3 € € 8 AebuireH
mm O - O S I O (stuow 9 )
L 3 L) 1
Ed ] | ks L e R T Pt B puss jusoey

YIUOW B UBY} SS| JO} JBYE PEX3OO| Ueeq Py OUM JB)E Pe3OO| 8q O} PESEED OUM UBIPIIUD JOB POX)OO| 4O J8QWINN  JSdO

7



Page 15

£1/2102 2oz

o %0 01q1ss0d se e1ep
u Lo 0} dn pue s1e1dwoo se st eyep Bupiewyousq 1Byl ainsus 01 BulluBds JuswuoNAUR JeInBes exeLspun
! { m %01 aouabijeiu) sseuisng pue ABajeng “soeipu) Siy} 10y BupieLIYOUSq JE|IBAR OU AUSLIND S 8194 |
1 | Aju
= § | s w_ mO %.E | %ET g - - - - AeBueH
3 o Loz 1eq . ,
m [l ML 3 g m g M . m .W (s1mak g 158))
I | Bl S ] M R 3| 2 pusy iwie} Buoy
11 T %GE : w S - e 5 TALLE, :
%0y

‘9480 0lUl BWOD A3Y) 810j9Q UB|d UOII08]0Id B 0} 103(ans Buisg 3Siiym papoddns eaey PINOUS SBIILLEY 18Y] PUR UBIP|IYo Jo uoipodosd
ybiy e 1eyl paloadxe a10}0IoY) St 1l ‘9IBl9M S,PIIUS B INOGE SUI80U0D Juediubls ale aleyl a1em aoeld Ul Ind aJe sueld uoioslod piiyd
‘awoy 18 A18in0ss pue A|e{es Ulewa. 0} USIP|IYD Jof 9]qissod 10U S| Y1 USYM Pasn ag PINoYS awoy Ajituey 118y} woly Aeme uaipliyo 1oy Buen

zi-une 21-Ae  Zi-dy 2i-eN ZL-aed  Zr-uer

Ha |
b
%0Z

L bt

e AR
§

JUBLUWIOY 8JIAIeS

“1esh 1Se| 9462 wody dn {(uaippyo

G J0 IN0 0Z) % /L€ S! 4By a1ep 0} Jedk syl (G| 40 o g) ueld uonosioid piyo
e 0} 18lgns useq Ajsnolrsid pey AINp Ul Ja1ie PaY0Oo| SWEOaq OUM UBIPIIUD O %0 -

JUewilio) eoueWIoHed

Au

L«M %0y | %ie | %ez | %09 | %oL | %2z | %ot AeBuirep
=5 =3 ’ ) :
EF|E|5|F|F|F| 2|8 |5 | maowowm
- 2l &% U (O gl IR L _ pusaJ} Jusdey

uejd uonoeloid piiyn 03 10elgns Ajsnoiaesd Jeye pexyoo; Bujwoosq usip|iyy jo 8brIUesIed  PivdO




€LRI0Z 21102 LLOL02

sl

Page 16

sigIssod se sep

01 dn pue e38idwos se st elep Bupewyouaq TeYl sinsus 0) BulUeDs JueWLoAUS sejnbal axeLRpUn

- | 1
w m 000°0% sousbyjjeiul sseuisng pue ABate.ig “01eoipul siyl Joj BuiewyOUaq SIGR(BAR OU AJUB.IND S| 8ioy .
i | 000'00+ AlUQ
: R B 5 AeBulre,
; x. 000051 NﬁND -
o & 31 8 e g E = (sreok g 15e])
e - 00000z £y 8 = e e 2 pueJ} wie buon
ol s | s ] 2] 3 2| g : ]
000°052 8 -
s

1910 84D JO 93N BY} BULIOHUOWL JO POYIBLI JBUIOUE OS[E S| UOIyM PSpPIA0Id 8180 SIYBIU JO J8qunu 8y] Ul UOIONPSS SU} SS1EISUOWSP BIEBp SiY|

iy ghJeW  ZL-ged  gi-uer

e

i
SEEUTRSE

I F P
Lo o drateds

JUBLWIWIOY 82IAISS

(080°z2) Jeah ise|
SLLUI} BWES 83 ueyl Jomoj Ajueoyitibls si y0yGY Jo ainbiy a1ep 01 Jeak sy} ‘IGASMOH -

‘Yjuow

snotnesd ayy woly Anubis dn ‘60g'gL Sem AN Ut 1D Ul SABp JO JISGUINU 210} 8ty -

JUBWWIOD 80UBWIOLSd

Mﬁm zes'or | ose'or | sozor | svsiu AeburreH
MNHRRERRERE g
ey a 1 & R P RS 232 u_._o.w«:coam
{awoy 1e peoe|d Buipnjoxg) eled uj uesq eAeY uesP|Iud SAep "'ON (101  8SPdO




Page 17

€LRL0e

2L/ 10e

L1002

%0

%S

%04
%St
902
%52
%0€
%SE
%0v

ajqissod se a1ep

01 dn pue 819(dwod se $i elep Bupjewyouaq Jeul 91nsud 01 BullUBDS JUBSWILOAUS 12nbal @yeuapun

souabi|[eiu| ssauisng pue ABajens "101eoipul SIY} 10} BUBLBWLDLSY B|QRjiEAR DU AJUSLND Si 818k
& | %ee | %o - - 0 = - &2 J8B12] AoBuLer
Ped |9%1¢c| %0SE | %0ee & & S = AeBuleH

1 < N 1 -
AHERRR T
m A Vot o S S 5 © pues wey Buo

‘Ajjusioi)e 8low $82.N0sal 8snoy Ui abeurw 0] Ua)E] 8¢ |IM UOHOE pue pajebisaaul Buleq st SIU) pusit
Bujonpas e Buimoys si 810 18350} AeBuiieH Jo asn ay] ‘z10z udy aouls paulioap sey uoisiroid AsBulen vy paoed usipjiyo jo uotpodoid ay |

JUBLLLIOY) BJIAISS

(Ainp uy g9 01 |udy W £g| Wiody) siuswisoeld a1ed
19150} 9SNOY Ul JO Jaquunu sy Ui aulosp e 0} anp Ajgbie| s uoonpsi ayj “udy ui 89g
40 1IN0 20z 01 pasedwod ‘AN ul uoisiroid AsBulieH Ul auem USIPIYD |GG JO N0 /7 -

zenr zZe-une  Zi-few 2iady  ZieW gl-ged Zu-uer 196
- y el e i 196481 94,8€ SU1 MOOQ [jom SUlBLIBI
| 1 | ] | ﬂ . | 8 | o pue |udy 82uUls paulosp sey UoISIAOLY AsbButieH ul uaipyyo Jo ebeiusosad ayf -
| { 1 I8 | m M ool JUSWILIOY 60UBLIIONeg
EERRRR
| '] | LR | A %G
5 1 1 13 i m_ ' %88 | %8 | %88 | %EE | BEE | %GE | %EE |wm 19618 Abuiier
| 5 H 8 1 | %0z )
i | 3 X A [ 4
B 1 m | “ } m *m %sZ POH (%128 %8'LE | %2'SE | %O'SE | %8¥E | %bGE | %8V Aebuirely
4 ¥ | fa | %0E — - - - N A ¢
\ ! 9 | m Eil € g g g .m g § (sywou: g yee))
s N SRl B4 s = a 2 = = & pusij Juesey

uolsiAcid AeBupiel ui peoeid usipliyd jJo ebrjuedied ZEAH




Page 18

_ soe 211102 LLOOZ o siqissod se owep
] F ' 03 dn pue 818|dWwod se S Bjep Bunewyousg JBL} 81nsus 0} BUILUBOS JUSWILOIALS JeinBsi eyeuepun
| L 202 aouebijjeiul sseuisng pue ABee.g “0JESIPU) SILY J0) BUINBWIYOUSY BIGBIEAR OU AlUBLIND SI 848U |
| 2 |
i : | %0¥ % %66 | %55 - & = - - . 10618 Asbuler
i m i UBelr) {3596 | %296 | %198 - - - - AeBupreny
i 3 [ %08 e : 5
e . & 8 =% - m 8 m 3| (s5m0A g 15m))
j 000 E 4 ol B L 378 pues; uLey Buo
H 3 w L~ - L~} ~ A .
: %0ZE -
‘pauleUeW 8Q 03 SNONUIUOD 82UBWLIOLS
JUBWIWOD) B8OIAISS
‘SHSIA AlLIuow € ‘S9SeD [BUOIAROXA Ul “IO S[EISSLLI} HO8M g B UO PISE] S SIY] -
ZLINN ZLUNe ZiABN Zi-idy Zi-BWN Zied gheer 106181 94,66 SUl 9A0QE ‘91ep 0} dn 1B SHSIA BIBD U USIPIIYD JO 9%45°96 -
— - - §
.._ §a a2 __ _u .... bl UBWIWOY 8oUBWIOHSd
m i '3 y u_ 163 %02
- | ). N  §
g i ot | | .__ L M I %96 | %56 | %56 | %56 | BGE6 | %GE6 | %BGE | wa 18bu8) AabuieH
i | i i 1 1
! " m | d m L0 % | ueesn) | 9696 | %vs6 | %86 | %026 | %296 | %8s | %eoe foBupey
¢ | 1 1 ] | %08 ; ==
3 AT e grlE(e|E (|2t ]g] |ommem
: . F %00k i " v ; A LA pus, o9H
. o i) oy o o~ 1 o~ 4 -.._.ﬂ
%02t -

(ele0saWI) Moam g BUI LIUIM PBIBIALIOD JaMm YoM 8NP SHSIA JO 9%)

Sysia eseD uj uespliyy  g8edo

" x,\



Page 19

€H2L02  ZHLIE LH0L0Z

T

3

=
:

s|gissod se a1ep

o1 dn pue a1eidwoo se st elep BunewLOUSq 1BY] 8.msud 0} BUIUUBIS JUBIUONAUD Jeinbai axerepun
aouabiioiu) sseuisng pue ABoleng “Jojedipul Iyl oy Buniiewyousy ejqeieAr ou AJUaLING Si 9oy

Aluo , , . .

e1RQ m.“ LEL eve AeBujen
B 3 = W T © 7 (aumek o
e = < v 9180

m m 8 3 S W m m .m" pueJj uuey Buo
@ n - = =~ W1 je

‘Solfilue; Yim BupIoM usum Aem AjaLurl B Ui pasn s ylomsuwels [e6a] A101N3e1S a1 1BL1 84NSUS 0} ANANOE JONUOW 0} S8dIAIBs 86| Wwo)
$onBE9|j00 UM AJUIUOLL S188LL 8IS B} JeaA 1SB} aWi) BWes ay} O} pasedwod JoMo) St palellul ale teyl sbuipascold esed jo Jequuinu sy

ZLne ZEunr Zi-Aey

Zidy  Zi-eN ELaed gi-uer

JUBWIWOY B8IIAIeS

reaf 1se| uod siyy AqQ

pajeiu sBuipeesoid a1ed g 8y} UBL) JOMO} ‘LG SI ainbly 81ep O} JESA aU] ‘1OASMOH -

AInp Ul g1 Uum “Jeg 0s JeaAk ay) ybnouu Ajipesss

pasesloul Sey paleniul a1em sBUIP9900Id 8180 BISUM LBIPHUD 10 JAqUINU 8y -

BB BE: BE: | ; _,c JUBWILIOY BoUBWIONed
i i Afs
i ’ A snoieid)
Y BE: B ] 61 0z | e G e/ snot
. | } W AebuieH
j St & ™ F4
S5 |8 |%
0z e 4 =
= Auo 61 L 2L 6 ) L 9 AeBuye
eleq 1eH
F og v
[ n Y 3
- WW - g |F§| & F 3 (suuow g 1s8)
~ o =2 o - ks - pues] Jueosy
ow L

(us1pilyo jo ‘ON) -perenuf sButpeesold eien  £14dO




Page 20

91qI1ssod se aiep
03 dn pue 919jdwiod se $) elep BuneWILOUSY JBYY BINSUS 0) BUIUUBDS JUSWUOIAUS fenbal axeuspun
aousbyeiu; ssautsng pue ABsieag “ioyeolpul Siu} Joj Bunieuwsyousy siqeEAR ou AJUBLIND S| 3184 |

"S)ueWBoe|d 81ed 118y} 03 UsIp|IyD
winjas 0} usxe) Bulsq SI 1L} UOHOR Bl PUB 84D Wo) BUISSIW UBIP|IYD UO JaGUIB|N Pedl PUB J0J08IIq) 8U) 0} pepiacid aie sa1epdn AIeom

JUBLIWO) B80jAISS

. "Alenuep Ul papJodal (g aul WO} UMOP
NG ‘JesA 1se| s} SIUYL USIS |9AS) BY) 0] LIS S| BUISSILL UBIP|IYD JO 1equunu By -
“YIuow ey Jo pus ayl 1e Buissiw
Ziint LN Zi-ABw  Ziady Zi-rew i . psurewlal g pue Ane Jo yiuow oyl Buunp a1eo wouy Buissiw a1em usIpiyd ¢ -
7 I 1 I §
BRRERRRDE
. r
! E {4 i w s JUBLIWIOY) 8duBWIONed
; ] -4 Pl o
‘ A 1'% ] Aot o o lalalw i | oz AsBuirey
| i M,m st eleqg )
e g8 SEAEREAE (sawow g wm)| |
: ol o T N Longsen i W

274
yiuows ey} uj jujod Aue je 8ied WO pepuoosqe/Bulssiw uelpliyo jo JeqwnN 61y dO




Page 21

£1/2102 kA% 1 10102 016002

\._.a.'.‘.___ '._._._J

%0Y

- - - %re | %6 | %6 | %16 |® vopuo7

£ | %26 | %26 | %86 - - %#6 - J10678] AobuLEr

POH [9%1'¥8| %599 | %8/8 | %L'L6 = S & AeBuleH
n A g

m 712188 g 8 = (srmek g 18m)

w. ol il o R e . 3 2 pues uue; Buo

"sourLLIOMed JOJUOW O} We)SAS (B0 B 908|d Ul Ind MOU Sk 801nes 8y “196I.) 0} Josojo st soueLLOpad [BNjOR eyl 15066Nns yoiym Safeosawin

painbal uiyIMm Pe1oNPUOo Buisq BIB SMBIABI PaYedOo|(e Tey) se1eoipu; Buitioda) Jeoiy() Buimainey uepuadapu| Uo PasEq SWB1SAS (800

Zi-une  gi-ke  Ziady o 2u-tew 2i-aed

zL-uer

T A4

‘9|BOSOWI} Ulypm pauaddey aAey SMaIABI

JBYIBUM PUB MBIASI 10} NP S4B JBU) S8SeD 38U} Uo podal Aje1einooe o) ajgissod jou s
} PAAIOSa S| SIUL U “uoneblisaAul Jspun sy pue 0150j81070) 0} pauodal ussy sey Siyj
*Aadoud Bupiiom 10U St -I0MBWERL] WO SMBIASI 1O} BIEp 8y} s|ind 1ey) podai ayy

- | ¥ T %0
1 i e JUBLIWIOY 60UBLLIIONEd
| % | 1 g [
| f M i h wl e - | %26 | %ee | %e6 | %26 | %26 | %6 |w 1062 Aaburter/
H e | i [
3 i “ | ‘. MMM pey - - | %R | %L vB | %500 | %989 | %829 KoButieH
- ks | N . - - -
%0L | P c z - AR
i %08 & W = 5 ,m W & & m .mn : oo
= = - = - — lwoe | ~ > o e ~oy 1 e -, Puen jusosy
%001 >

sefeasew(} pesnbes UM pemelrs: e1em UoIUM SBSED 848D Ul UeIplIyD IN) 98840




Page 22

\\\ €202  ZHAI0Z 110102 018002 mo\woow B0/L00Z  L0/9002

o T ﬂ T . m o | %0 - - %00 | %E L %L [ %800 F%se [T pusibuz
i ; | bz
o 4 E H i .m M W ) o 3 = - N wELL %L V%l | wles | vopuoy
Y £l ] & | _ ﬂ
M 4 e | m [l | %9 S - | weosfwsaL | %ol | %501 | %5EL |9 sunoqybIeN BolSHEIS
i & = ;
! 4 ] |3 ! %8
; 3 u ! M m ﬂm i LE | BEL | %0L | %L - % - - 106108 Aobuier|
: a i Vi %0+
; (_ .WM m n_m ! %z | UBBID).| 968°6 | %E 0L | %E'SL | %6EL | %LV | %8FL Nxcoﬁt- AeBuieH
- 3 & 1 - : : : —
: : A 51 . =
: =+ 3 | g (8| m ; 8 m g (5004 g 15m)
ot wm S| 3| Sl 3188l &|%  puenwebuo
w n - 3w 3 i ”

%81

‘Buiuueld a4es 100d Jo 9010yD JusWSoEld JO %' JO YNSI B JOU 8JB SBAOW BU] JBUL 2INSUS O} SPIsU 9DIAISS
ay3 Jusweoeld weuewlad alow wus) Buoj e 01 Juswaoe|d Wie) LOYS B W0} SAOW pauueld e o|dwexs 10} ‘suosess aAlysod Joj sjuswieoed
SA0OW AW USIPJIYO SOSED SWOS Ut JeU} pe1oadxe si 1| ‘siuswadeld g yum usipliyd e je Bupoo] Ajusiung aie ap ‘sjuswaoed ano Jo suiened

8U} pue pa1dsye uaIp|Iyd 8U} PUElSIEpUN 0] ‘Wes) aouewiopad eyl woly spodal AQ palsISse ‘90IAes ay3 Ag Aeauspun ale suonebissauy
UBWILIOY 8DjAIeS

(%11 40 ‘Ainp 1e se | g) Buisesioul 8q
01 sieadde pue peyoe.} OSje S| SIUSLLISORId OM] UIM 8480 Ul USIPIYD 1O J9GQUWINU 8y -

n T N e zver {(%£°01) LL/0LOZ
S8 2 £ eopd o 7 %0 Joj eBelane sinoqubieu [eolsiE]S By) UeY) Janaq Aubls pue jebuey uiyym SISy -
iy o9 | A ! ‘qeak| |
5 __ 0 LT [ise s vl sjuaweoed 910W SO € PEY SABY UBIPIIYO JOUE P8Y00] (948°6) LSS JO N0 ¢G | |
e 4 _ el | o6 JUBWWION 6OUBLIIONGY |
i | “ m *9 o600 | w1t | st | st | ser | wer | %y 1012 Aobuusery
s : | \ s
] ) i 4 | .M %86 | %66 | %I0L [ %90t | %20L | %801 | %L L1 AeBupen

| F %01
s mw c|§|E| & | §|F |8 . (suiwow g sm)
— e - FF | 8 ol B SRR AR ] B ~ puen juedey
% - " 2

SEAOLU JO J8qUINU :UBIP|IYD Je)Je PeXOO] JO sjuswese|d jo b___nﬂm Z9AH

'sieah g 1SB9) e o) Justusde|d SWES Syl Ul Usaq aABY OUM SIBBA G'Z 1SB9] 1 O} 818D Ul US8q SABY OUM UsIp|IyD [je

jo ebeiusoied sy saaib y uswaoeld Jo yibua) 8y} uo paseq s! (£9dQ) @iNsesWw PUDSS 8yL "Z10g AINM 0} L LOZ aunp “Ba 128k Buijol B Joj 810j8.8U}
aie umous sainbiy ayy) tesh ise 8y} Bulnp sjuswedrid 2J0W 0 99.Y) PBY SABY OUM UBIPIIUD 0 abejusoiad syl SaAIB ) ‘poousuadxs Sey LoYoD au}
Ul pliyo yoee sjuswaded JO 18quINU 8y} UO PaSEq St (Z9AH) 1SH1 8YL "UBIP|IYD JoYE PaXOO0} JO SjUsWaeld JO ANIGR]S 8Ul O] 8189l SaINSEsl asey ]




Page 23

\v\w

EL/ZE02 ZHAI0Z  LLOLOZ 016002 60/800¢ 80/L002  L0/8002
| | e M %0 e - %999 | %rs9| %299 %09 | were | D puwibuz
58 | 4 3 U | L e A , . )
! ! g A | u N o S - | %999 | %099 | %899 | %919 | @ vopuoy
1 . ] 3 i |’ 4 " & %02
1 .“\ m 3 _ g | w 5 . - - | gros|%e29 | %289 | %529 | %569\ SmnoqubIeN [RINSHEIS
g A k| [ a
! ! i L L e | s | s | we | wor | we9 | sz | - |- 18121 Aobuiret]
| { ! . M C b wos
! y_ ! | L e | POH [%T19)%9°89 | %07TL | %0°SL | %E9S | %2729 | %0°69 feBuireH! |
4 Lol =ty :
gl il wnm. vl ..@.. i B R W m m m m w m m (emah g 1sey)|
%08 s o Ry R U R 3 puei; uue) Bua| |
w s - o = BATTES
‘uoeBiISeAUl JBpUN St PUB 101ROIPU) SNOIASLD a1 O} pexul St J0YBDIPU) SIY L
JUBILIOY B80jAIeS
Zne giune ZlARW  Ziady LN 2LGed  ghusp ‘sbelene sinoqubieu
- - — - - —t %0 [BOISITRIS BU] UBY] 9S10M AlIUBIS pue %2/ 10 196181 a1 UBLL JOMO] SI SIU] -
i ] h 4 |3 T . ‘sieah Z 1Se8) B 10} JusLiade|d swes sy} Ul Uesq aARY SIBoA
i 4 } B [ G°Z 40} 8IBO UJ US3G SABY OUM (LOYOD 081 O INO |Z1) 91 J8PUN UBIPIIYO JO %29 -
i i m “ | w0z JUBLILIOY) 60UBLILIo/I6g
i by 11 0q
! |
bt | 4. _ a4 | | i %0¥ & | Mo | war | was | wa | el | %L | %L | 18618 A3BULIEL
| i 4 _
e | 1 q q | ! u s POY |92 9] %689 | %812 | %9 1L | %E0L | %169 | %EOL AeBuleH
' ! 1 [ TS %09 3 -
| I [ . = 3
_ ., [T E S E|1¥ |8 %8¢ |5 (suwow g 1w)
S = - = A pana e T LR Pue: ueoay
%08 ; ; y
wewseoe(d jo yiBuej :uBIPHYD Jeye Pexoo) Jo sjusweode(d Jo ANjqeIS £9do

S




Page 24

gLeLe E4%14%124 toL0e

. %0
i IR 5 I |

C . f m I .m L o0z
. 5 3 _.4 - |
8 s R0 S

| 3 | ¥ ¢ b ooy
8 a | ﬁ .
e ! 9 m

o 1 R
LA Up? 71

i o %001

%021

- - %06 | %06 | %06 | w82 | /8 |0 pugibuy
- - - S %88 | %06 | %68 |@ vopuoy
- - %26 | %16 %68 | %6 | %26 |V snoqubieN [BoRsSHeIS
HE6 | %56 | %86 | %96 | %56 | %56 = — j0b18) Aobuiier
%SL | %26 | %6 | %8 S S S - AeBupsH
2l 8] 8 S |3 puen uiey Buom
(2] L =3 3 o] LR

"soueuLOpad sy} uo sjoedwi Apybu siyl eousiues [eIpoISND B aaey ojdoad BUNOA Jj "LOIJEPOLILLOOO. WL} HOUS 10} PISU BU} 9oNPaJ pue
Ajewup 810w UOREPOWIWIODOE JusuBLIad M8y} $$3008 Ued o|doad BunoA Jey) amnsus o) BuisnoH yum Bupjiom si ea1a1es ey * Bulaly Juspuadapu
01 Lels poob e way) eAlb 0} s18ABS| 818D 0} papircid 8q 0} SPaU LOIBPOWILLIODIDE S|eNNS 1Ry} [iN) PUiW 81e 801AJes sajdoad BunoA sy

e ziunp ZiAeN gy Zi-JeN Zi-ged Zieuep

- JUSIWIOY eD]AIeS

7 | TR J %0 "UOIIEPOLIIODDE. 8lgeyns Ul ajem Ajnp Ul 81ed ya| oym ajdoad BunoA g jo 1no g -
: : A _ J | ] ‘19611 9% ¢ B Isuiebe ‘uojepowwoooe
] | 1 ! [ %0z 8|elINS Ul 9J9M 81ED O] JBOA B JO} SIBARS| 818D JO (0Z JO N0 G1) %G/ -
1 m_ il | w | | 0% JUBWIWOY 80UBWIOLSd
: b ! 8
{ & | 1 [
"_ ﬂ -3 L poos %56 | %56 | %56 | %96 | %56 | %96 180.2] AsbuLeH
1 3 ‘ 1 1
! 4 d
R [ %08 %29 | %es | %001 | %ss | %00t | %09 KeBuyey
| : =t -
- - %001 .-u._” w. W .W 5 W_W W (stwow g y5e)
e e pua eoey
%021 - 4

UO[IBPOWILIOODE BIGENNS U} SIeARS| 8y 2y1dO

J .”

"aidoad BUNOA 10} uoISIAOId BjgBPIOKE PUR BINDSS ‘ajes SapiAcid Ui )i 8jqeNNnS pawasp

S| UOHEPOWILLIODDY "UOIIEPOWIIODDE S|qEeINS U} JO 133 Uj SB PBIUN0O 8Q Jouued Asyl 9SIMIBYI0 810 BUIABS| JO SUIUOW N0} LIUIM PaYSHAE]SS
ui g 01 SposU PsLIsoUOd sidoad BUNOA U} JO SMEIS BU | 8180 UM Pe1aidialul 8g PINOYS PUEB SIBQINU |[BLUS UO PASE] 810J919U) SJB JO1eIpul
sty Joj sebejussied AYUOW "E1/2102 Ut 61 WIn] 0} onp ate sjdosd BUnoA Gg ‘yiuow ay; Ui g1 wny oym ajdoad BuUnoA Lo Paseq ale sansesw 8say

ﬂ




Page 25

EL2L0Z  ZHAI0Z  LHOLOZ

048002  60/8002  B0/L002

#. M g | et %0
| | _ - I T
§ ] & - .
: _.ﬁ [ B m i q
m { mﬁ , i g w %09

TR RR RIS

1 it Z %0L
r— - - %08
%06

e & %19 | %29 | %£9 | %99 | %€9 |10 pugibuz
S : S %29 | %59 | %89 | %99 |® vopuo7
= - %69 | %9 | %99 | %wes | %99 | W SUNOqybIeN [EoNSHEIS
& | %08 | %ol | w6 | wes | WL | el - 18612] AoBueH
PoH | %0L | %¥9 | %eL | %S9 | %L | %89 | %89 KeBuie
i 8 g8 m m m 3 (1004 g 15%))
F{ m U Il - o B 3|5 pues ey Buo
w L] — D <

-ajdosd BunoA 0] poddns pue Buiojusw apiaoid yaiym sewwesbord saeussye Jo sbues ayy esealsou) o} s,ybnoiog
Buiybnoloqubiau pue uoiEPUNOH WBYUBKO| 841 Uim paxiom sey pue snid g ajdoad BunoA spnjoul 0] 3Jom S I PBPUSLIXS SBY [00UOG [BNLIA
ay] Je)Jom [BI00S PaleoO|[B 1) UM HSIA DT Aluluow dA yoes Buunp passaippe osie si siy} ‘peaibe seibsiens pue uosied BUnoA au) yum
passno sip st Juawdojaasp [euosied/Bulules) pue UOIIEONPS BIUM SMBIASY PIIUD Jayy PaX00T JO 108(ans sy} ale poouynpy o} dn sianes aien

2Nt ziune A Zi-dy

Zh-leN 2i-aed  Zi-uer

JULLLIOD BIIAIeS

"UOHBPOLUILLIODDE JIQBINS Ul SB POIUNOD
8( 910J919U} J0UURD pue LOoSLd Ul U8SQJ BABY UBID|IYD JO 18qUWINU B ‘SYIUoW JUSd8I Uj -

'sinoqybBiau

{ennseIs Yum Ajgeinone) seredwiod ainbly sil ‘1eremol 196.81 9408 Ul Mojsq ‘133

, - — - %0 Ul 8Jem a1ep 0} jeak 8y} Jo} Sianes; 9480 JO (0Z 4O IO $1) %0/ AINF JO PUB 8y} 1B SY -
g _ 1 3 | . | 1 ) "(193) Buiures
I 13 : ! 1 m %02 10 JuawAoldws ‘uoneonpa Ul s1am AN Uy 8Jeo Yo} oym aidoad Bunoh g jo o g -
; g m S | m JUeWWIO)) SOUBLLIOLSd
_ 1 B3 3 i3 wor
| * ! ..m m w | - £ | %08 | %08 | %08 | %08 | %9s | %9s | %9l | 10618 AobuisEt]
- = - - ”..L e e POy | %29 | %.9 | %00L | %SL | %00k | %08 | %SZ KeBuueH
| 1 Pl izt = a

%00 .m m 5| 'S g g | 8 S I z (supuow g 1se))
~ B B a A o =04 . pueJ) weosey

%02t 3

Bujuyes; Jo JuewAojdwe ‘UoieINPs Ul S10ARS| 818D  gv1dO




Page 26

Vi €L2L0Z 202 LLULOZ

{Ajuo suoydopsj

- - 9L Z1 L 81 61 ¥ smoqubiaN I8ig

143 €1 s - - - - sSOBS -AebuueH

8 148 gL - - - - . suondopy -AsbBuriep

R . - . (s0DS

e 2 £ pue suondopy) AebujeH
8 g g m x| (wekgism)
L EERS SRR et

"Z1H0Z J83qWsAON Ag pejedIolue § JBULINS B UIM ‘DOASIUDE p | SIepiO diysueipieny [eosds 03 p/eBes u) 196181 Uo Si yoiym

s1apiQ uondopy G aq jim 818y} 3ey) peideoxe si )l elep Bupo) 9U) WOiJ "ULIP(IYo JO Spasu auy) siesw i ueld aseo Ajuoyine [eoo} syy Buunsue
ul ajos Aoinzess e se 1010 Buimelney uspusdepu) ey} pue Dy 4o sueld SIopUoW 0s[e S$8004d Buimeinay Aloimes sy} sdiysueipiens)
[e1oadg pue suondopy Buisseufoid pue Bupioes jo wie ssaidxe syl yum yuow souo Buisswi Bupoes uondope pue sBufeswl eyepdn
AubBiuiioy ase aley) “uaip|iyd [enpiApu) Joy sueid sseiboud o) wee) Asduelisd pue uondopy Byl UM AjAI0aye asie)) Wwea | HNoY a8y
JUBWILWOY 80jALeS

"CH/LL0C JO jle ul s1em ausy) Uuey)

20U S S} ‘038P 0} Jeak auy ul siepio diysueipient [eoads 4| useq eAey sy -
‘gL SeM L 1/010Z 10} sBerene sinoqublau eonsiels eyl ‘Gl s £1/2L02

10} jas 196181 8y AN Ul 9S8} JO ¥ JeaA By} Ul sUOAOPE g LUBeq SABY 819y -

2 JUBLILIOD) BOUBUILIONE]

e giune Zi-AeN Zidy ZieN giged 2reuep

14 [4 - kb 3 - 4 2 _ SODS -Aebuley

N
—

suondopy -AsbuleH

(s0Ds
| pue suondopy) AeBulisH
x| (sutowgse)
B - PUBILJUB06H

<
[}

(3

Traey

i
(sODg) siepio diysueipienb |ejoeds jo0 JequinN  qgLy dO

suondope jo JequnN egiy dO

suepJo diysuelpsend |eioeds/suopidope jo slequinN gLy do

*SUINJINO BU) MOXS UBD SUOJIBLIBA |leWS Sk Buipesisiw eq

Kew sejepdn JejnBes eJow - PEAJOAU UBIPIIYD JO JOqUINU jfewS AjA)jE|e] 8U) O} enp Aeuenb pajepdn Ajuo s sjy3 1By} 810U 8ses|d ‘a1epdn
Auepenb pieseioog uoiidopy ey ‘g xjpueddy o} Jejes eseeid ‘si03edjpu) uopdope [euojieu jsujebe eourwIoued PUB BIBP [ENIXEIUOD
‘Bupyrewyoueq ‘erep pues wuey Buoj Jeyuny Jo4 “sse00.d uondope sy} JO SSBUlBLI} BY) 0} BUIBISI £Y PUB Zy LY SJOJEdIpUI PIB0SI0DS
uondope Ae eaiyy ey} uo sjepdn Ajylow e sepiroid ose 3 “(syuow zi uiyum padeld 9) uoisioep Aousbe ue Bumolo) uoidopE Joj USIPIYD
Jaye pay oo Jo sluswade(d JO Ssauljaul} su} pue s1epIo diysueipsent [e1osds pue suoiIdOpPE JO SWNJOA SU} UO UORBULIOIU} SOpiA0Id UORDSS SIUL




Page 27

£4/2102 2i/i0e

L0102

= oae ol LJ

r |

PSR Sl

o Lol

R

o«

%0

%04

%02

%0E

%0¥

%0L

%08

%06

- - %re | wal | el | %9/ | %5/ |0 pugbuy
- - - F:2:274 %44 %1 %59 | uopuo7
- - %9/ | %49 | B6L | %99 | %89 |V sinoqybieN [8a3snB)S
8L | B8 | BGL 274 - Jebie) Asbuer
%0S | %L | %E9 | %O0S - AeBulen
¢ h : 3 N TR
s| 351818888z (ss08k g 3
Z w 5 = I 3 s | 8 s |= pues uuey Buo

*34n1N} 8y} U1 SSaulBWI} Uo 801AIS 8y} 0} abus|ieys e apiroid jim aoeld Ul Ind usaq aaery Jeyl Stuswebuelie
Bunopuow pasiasl aY | "aeds Sl JO INO LWSY] YO0} YdIum USIP|IUD ¢ OF UOHBISI Ui SSBUIjsWI] JO 3OB) B uaa( Sey aiay} ey} pabpajmouor si y

ZLne ziune ZiAew Ziesdy

FARL ]

21-484

2i-uer

WP ENTPPEI

-3 .‘L...ua.-r_-..n A‘_.;..'\.-_J

JUBLILIOY) 6DIAISS

(1894 sy 10} 19S Useq sey Jebiel Ou) MOJaq PBISH ‘SIOJBIIPUI PIEDSI0DS
uondope mau ay} AqQ papassadns st NG UOBULIOJUI 10} PAPNIOUY SI J0IRDIPUI SIY |

(L1/0102 W 9%9/) sinoqubisu
[EONSHELS 40} BIEp BuplBlLILOUSq 15818 84} MOfeq S| PUB (% 1/) Z1/1 L0 Wol}
souewLIopad ul suloep B sussasdal siy) ‘uondope uo juswsoe|d Jeul ul pauieLwS)
pue ‘uondope 1o} pedeid 8g PINOUS AsU} JBUL UOISIOaP 8L} JO SYIUOW Z | UIyiMm
uondope 10j padeld s1em UsIp|Iyd JSYE PaXN0O} (8 JO IO ) 940G AN 01 JBaA au |

juswiwio) sduewICued

peoeld eg pinoys pluo ey 1eyl uojsioep AousBe ue Buimojjos uondope 1o} usIp|yD JeyE PeXOo)| JO stuswweoeld JO sseuBwl IN) L6ed

- - N - %8 | %8L | %8L | ™ 186181 Aoburiety

%0S | %.9 g = & %0S | %001 AeBurey

| mm E|l5|§ |8 § 8|8 |z @ mwouownm

EE | S = & 2 2 2 | . ‘puel} Juessy
uojldope .o}

ot




Page 28

29 pusjbuz
sinoqybleN i . B} i - T
e 180RSN8IS 6£9 - 1068 Aobuiiel
Ll 6¢L AeBuyrey ped | vz | stz | w8z | 9er | 989 - e AeBuey
e ; 1
obBeleae m.. s | B 8 m m S
) - B1] WIe;
21-6002|  LL-8002 120k soIL Nm 8| 2|2 |8 g |3 3 pues; e} BuoT
; W@ ] - & S : " ,

"BJEP 9JNJN} UO SSBUIjdWIL JO SULSY Ui AjpAneBou 1oeduwl

{i1M SIUY BWI) SjGEISPISU0D SW0S 10} uoidopy Joj ued UB 0} 108[gNS UeB] BABY USIP|IYD BU} JO AUBL SB JBABMOH" PapesuU oq ABW SJUSLLISE|Y
aAndopy 818um UBIPJILO JO UOIEOYIIUSP] ALJBS BU) Ul 8SESIOUI UB O) PB| SBY SIU} PUE AY|IGRIS LWES) JO SWLSY Ul PAACIdU SBY UORENYS aij)
“JOAO WINY Je1S UB1Y JO 108fans ey} sem wes ] uondopy sy uaym awi e 1e Buipuly Ajiwey uy skejsp 0} painguye Ajeb.e| st Sy} J0) suosesl 8y |

JUBLILLIOY) 80jAI8S

€1/2H02  2H/t102 110102 01002 60/800C

T | B g "PIOYSBILY fBUOITBY
X A | |00 U1 188W O} 18PJO Ui €1/2 102 104 Pannbai ag pjnom sAep gLy jo abeioae ue ‘Jeak yoes
i 1 | m w d suondope Jo siaguinu jenbs Buiunssy sAep 6E9 JO PIOYSS.Y} [BUOIBU SY1 SASIYOR
3l | m i | m m.m 01 s) AsBuueH ji Apueoiiubls #onpal 0] pasu 810jaIsyl M 8BBIBAR €1/210¢ 8Ul -
h 9 g | o (S12) 21/L1H0Z
! g 8§ 0 tom pue (#82) 11/0102 10} sAep ebeiane sU) 0} pappe 8q 03 abelaAe ¢1/z 102 duUl Buires;
| ! ! 00z yo doup fim ebeiane 01/600Z 28Ul €1-010Z UoIBINOIeD abesaae Bulyjol Jeek ¢ syy U] -
e *$9004d 8U) Ul SAEP Q02| 19A0
006 Jo)e peldope Sem oym piiyd suo 03 anp Aj@bie] s Ainp ul SAep GOg 0} 8sesioul suj -
gi-np zZi-unp 21-Aew 21Ky '©10¢-010g 104 S|9AS| DIOYSB.I] [eUOliU U0 PESE] S|
e ) yolym (sseah g Buiol) yebuey Aep 6E9 83 8AOQR SI SIUL “Z1L0Z AINP -udy pousd suj 1o}
e | Jm I oot L/ sem uondope 1oy padeld Buieq 01 Jsle pexoo] Buiwooeq woiy skep sbeisae ayj -
i 4 m e JUBILIOY eduBWIOLSY

E i M » I 00E
| .. ! w  oor @ 859 659 659 659 - - jobie| Aebuirel
'} MMM psy G508 | 629 | WN 161 S - KeBuleH
| - = = - =~ e z - A .
5 5 . m w m 3 T w R | & puei wesey

T 008 23 s s i ;7. p i K ¢

(uondope u0; peoeid UaIP|IYS SOPNIOXS 1)
Auo ueip|iyo peidope o} seiefel ainby syl , A1V J01BOIpU] PIBDBI0DS uodopy)
poued uj peidope ueipiiys 1o} uondope Joj peoeld Bujeq o) Jeye pexoo| Bujwooseq wouy skep ebeieAyY €8V AH

»




Page 29

%8¢ pugibuz
8inoqybisN
i) [BoNSHBIS @ %89 - 18618 A8bULIEH
%Ly %Ly AeBulrey PBY | %I¥ | %0S AsbBuley
! ~ A () 3
216002  11-800Z LT W il g o3 m g m g 84} uLe] Buo
1eek eeay) m g m e 3 m pus.} uue) Buo
w - L o e

12 ulyum uondope o 186ie) sy Buiasiyoe Ul 1sISSe j)im sBuiesw Bupjuy uondope pue Bupjoesy Aousueunsd ybnosyy Aunnios juswebeuety
pasealoul 8] ‘os|y "1ebie) aourwLiopad siUl 8yl Uo AjpAlusod 10edull |IM UDIUM ‘paifiiuapl usaq aARY Siuswaoe|d WIOUM 104 ‘Seigeq paysinbuiiel
£ pue ‘usipjiyo BunoA Alea Jo Jequunu e 8Je a8y ‘einbi) SIY) SHOISIP YOIuM Stul] SLIOS 10} JoYe PaY00| Ueag SABY OUM UBIPJIYD SBpN|oul speL
S1UBLWISORId JO SLLNJOA POSESIOU; 8] Bl 8|JBIOPISUOD SLWOS 10} JOYE PaY00] usaq pey pousd awil sy Ul uondope Joj paoe|d UsIpiiUD 8y} JO £

‘SyIuoLW

JUBWIWON 8OIAI8S

‘Pajediput Liuow sy Jo
pua 8yj 1e se se.nbiy s1ep 0} Jeak aue umouys sainbl4 ‘uondope
104 paoe(d uaipyd pue usIp)IuD peldope 0} saielel ainby sIyt

‘(sBeisne [euoneu
aU} uo paseq s! yoiym) 19b1ey |euossiaosd Byl molaq si siU Ieye paxoo} Buiwooeq
£L210Z auiioz w0 Zi0r Zhunr Zi-AB JO syuow |2 uiypm uondope 1oy paoe|d aiem UaIPRYD (£t JO N0 2) 9% Ly AP 1B SY -
] .uh, W] J E JUBWILIOD SOUBWLIOUSd
# N b %0 ) g %0t
[ 1 m 0z | @ | %8s | %8s | wes | wes | - s - J8buzy Aobuiiet]
1 ! b [ %0 - ;| %0€
[ R . R DS wor | POH | %i¥ | %Ly | - g . - - febuiren
j AR %0$ %0S E - £ W = mv m o e
- —_ T ; 2 : g 3 puas; wesoy
%09 %09 sk m ~ R o = = m" i
e L) %0L ,

Jeye pexooj Bujwooeq jo syluow |z ulypm uondope Joj peseld  98ydo

L€V 103B0ipU| pJeOBI0OS Uslidopy) :
v




Page 30

*1B9A SIUY] Jey SNyl seigqeq

paysinbuijes ¢ usaq oAey aay] ‘fercsdde Loy Arenuer - jequisides O e1ep 196181 B yum AjRUSLIND JusLSsasse ) siedope sAnoadsoid G| s
aJay) pue sieidope jo 100d & Buiniosl S| 901AIes uondope sy pue SIY} O "JUSLWISEBID 10} JIBM 03 9ABY ASU} ST} B4} SONPaI O} Awoyine unoo

Buirsiyoe o1 Joud uaipiiyd 104 syuswaoeld Ayiuep! 01 st wie 8y "sBupeeiy Buyoes) uondopy ay) o se ss890.d Yons BUO s Bunesus Busjuy
8y Jsweoeld sy} 0} uoiidope Jo4 plIyo e doeld Ajoyine Lnoo wouy sAep JO laquunu ey} sonpsl 03 8oed Ul $8559001d JO JeqUINU € a1 aleyl

JUSWIUIOD B8DjAIeS

2ci pugibuz
o smoqybieN ‘leAas| Ajuoyine [e00)
1BofISHEIS Ye eiep Buises)el SSYO4YD UO juBjiel S| JOJBOIPUY| S|U} UO sseiBoid Bulinseey -
ooz KeBurren "PIOYSBIYL BY) JO Loys SAep 9z si Aebuiie
S|9A9) | 1-800Z UO paseq 0s ‘sAep g1 sl £102-0102 10} PIOYSaIY] [BUOIBU BY] -
118002 obeieAr “Aiwey sandope ue ypm Buiyoyew pue piiyo e eoeld o) Ajioyine pnod
Jeoh seuy) Buiaeoes Ajuoyine [Bo0| syl Wou) SABP 6£Z S! (1 1-8002) obrIene Jeak ¢ s, AeBuley -

JUBWIUIOY @oueLWioned

{2v 101e0|pU) pieoeloos uondopy)
(sAep) Ajjwe; eapndope

ue 0} yojew e uo Bujpioep AjoyIne [800] 8UY PUE PlIYD B 8oBd 0} AJUOYINE UNOO BUIAIeo8s AILIOYIN. [BO0] B UBBM]BQ B} 8BEIeAY




Page 31

“'sIeal om] Jano J0) uewased awes|
aU} U UBBG PEL OUM SIEaA S'Z LIBY) BIOW 10§ BIE3 L) UBIPIILD jo ebEjusdsad By %69 9%0L WTL %SS %L %59 %49 sieah z 10} wawsoed mueg
18] Byl Ul SjusWaoeld BI0W JO 88IY) PBY OYM B1ED U) UBIP(IYS jo abejuasied ay %01 %01 %L %ST %ET %51 %IT sjuawaneyd 910w J0 a9y |
$49pI0 BIUBpISE) g pue ssapio diysuelprent : (%77) -
{EI60E 2. “SUOHODE ¥ USBG SABY BIBL 'E1/2102 SUN(: O) J85 8L U) 61 33 ot 9z | (%07)68 | (%0108 oogoy | 1°PU0 duBpIsa) pue dnsuBpIeng (B1oeds ‘suondopy
——ZITTIUT
40 ajoym ayl ul £ 0) paredwod epenb 1sil ey Ul g1) s1epio diysueipient
eoads u) aseaiou) auyy o) anp Aabie 5) seak snojaaid By Jaa0 asealow P %0 %6 %5 %S %S %OT 1BRIO BOUBNISD)
8yl %4z Bunib ‘siapio aouepisal BiA Y| £ pur siepuo diysueipient jepads ! 10 diysueipsent [epads o) sueo Buiaesl abeueoiag
BIA Y3| 21 ‘E1/Z10Z BUNP 0} 12Ok BU) LI BIED B BABY OUM UBIDIYD £9 aY) JO
EIT L1t 971 1[4 1Z1 S11 65 000°01 Jad iaye pasoo) uaIp jo aley
955 5.5 819 165 565 995 07559 18 PENoo] LD ON
ot | 3 : susidope aanoadsoid parosdde jo sequiny
9e Se a1 062't uondope Bunieme usipiya jo requiny
SU1 UD UBNRI S |2AB] [BD0) B 1B JOJBIPUI Sy} Lo ssasBioid weoes Buunseapy 95 v 2s {sAep) Eﬂﬁ_ sBuipaeoosd aseo jo yibuay cmma;
ﬁ D 4 [ =
%0 %l %0 %0 %0 %E %8 uaIpiius _c .x,w 1BAD 10 BAY o&a :m_c_Eu _o nco__aouq
i 2 : 2 {perdope a1e oum a1ed Buires) usapliyd WA Jo =)
e wr o % %b %b %9 %L spuncufiyoeq AuouIL U WOl uaIpIy2 jo suoidopy
TIOTOOPE O] AERE Dabuae)
LRI 9 %8 %ol SEY UOISIDaP BOUBSUBWLLIST BU) LUOUYM JOj UBIPjILD Jo 5
%9 %5 %E %S %S %G %8 %2l (peidope are oym aued Buiaesy =) areo woyy suondopy
° 0] idope o) z._nmﬁﬁ _o cc.wﬁmﬂ ..._9_ uoyE) aE._ By
61e 0] wioj Sawuaaqa o _naco_ Ecz .._9_2 mE__ m.... h.
e uoisioap o) 1sas8iul jo cﬂ.uzwaa_ oy uase] uE_. eyl
o syuow |Z uiyim Ajwe) paidope neyl Yim Ul pBACLY | woym jo ‘pouad
au) uiyym paidope alam oYM UBIPYYI ¢ SBPNoU| Sy | “8red Bupaus jo syjuow (uspy
12 Utylim 08 pip £ woum jo ‘(paded so paidope seyue ssem ‘a'l) Aywey patdopel (zui) %y | .(2) %06 | .(6) %te | .(#) %ee | () %y | (SE) %iv | s %89 10 ON) % Awej aandope siay) yim bl Butaot pue 31ea
JIBYI LM Ul PBAOL UBIPIYD L1 'EL/Z10Z Bunp o) Jead ey u) “Auo uaspiy Bujisiua UsBMIBq SYIUOW | Z UBL) SSO] NEM OUM USIPILD
paidope uo peseq ale yoym ' Aabuuen Joj sainfiy fenuue ay) jo uondadxa
Byl yum ‘paoed JusLnd asoy)l pue usipiyo peldope uo paseq ase ssunby |y
: skep) AU} eARdopE UE O} (ojew & uo
SSYD4vD £q BiEp jo asesas
aU1 U UBNBI ] [9AB] [220| B 1B JOIRAIpUI S uo ssa1B0.d Jwaoas Buimseayy 6e2 ZEl L1 aﬂﬁﬂwﬂhhwuﬂma_hﬁ_nuﬂﬂ ”_”_Muﬂ"w%nm_mpm_” MMM._“”“
PINOM SAEP 811 j0 9BBIBAR UE 188A LOBS SUONCOPE jO SJBquINU [Enba BuiNssy
"SABD BEQ J0 PIOYSaIY] [BUOHEY 3y} BABIYOR 0 St AaBuuey ji Apueayiubis
80Npai 01 pasu aiojaseyl I ebesane £1/Z102 BUL “(S1L) Z1/L102 pue (paL) (skep) peidope
1 L/0L0Z 104 shep ebesane 8y 0} peppe aq o) ebeseae ¢ /z|02 aui Buines) yo 829 Sz vBL 96 1 5 :
L 6EL 1L g29 uBen SABY OUM uaJ 10} Ay aandope s) yim
doip jim abeiear 01/6002 84l £1-0102 uonenojes abesear Buijos 1ead £ oy u) Buiaow pue ales ashumw s_mu.,._w 5“;.._3 m_w____ mmﬁ?ﬁ
2102 aunr - judy pouad aui Joj g9
sem uvondope Joj paseyd Buag o) Jaye payoo) Bulwoseq woy step afieeae
€1/Z10Z Bunr It/ttoz| 1t/otoz| OT/600T| Zi-600Z 148002
QLA - 8epdn anehg
SaloN Apauenp 1531e7 ¢10¢
SInoqubeN
AoBuuien AsBuiiey _ et _ pueiBuz paedat0dg uondopy AsSuliey




Page 32

Ajnwey aandope yselyl gi-eloe PIoysalyy G1-210e ploysalyL y1-1 102 ploysaiyl e1-0402 L1-8002 -
Yum Buiyorew pue pliyo : = . . 0
® aoe(d 01 Ajoyine unod
Buiaeoas v - (11-8002) N
obeione Jeah ¢ s febuney = Rt et S

R 2ot 65z B mmde Q02

Alluey aandope »
sy uum ul Buow puessed T T e
Buuawe ppyd - (L1-go02y T e
ofeione jeeh g shebuey o T

" 11-8002
A,>mm::m1

009

sheq

ployssyl TTTRT 2 2. e L 008

Auey sandope uim etoe A m_ v 71-6007 .~
Butuoiew pue pyyo e 20ryd 0} S5ULIEH Aaguuen

Aoyine pnod BUABIDI Y -~ M-~ .

—eee =t 0001

ploysaiy Ajwey
aandope sh ypm u Buirow

PLE 5120 BULIRIUS PI) — @ sio}eoipu] pjoysaiyl awij abelany

SSYDHVD AQ Paseajal 8q 01 18Q yyxs
paseld Apjusiind asoy) pue ualppyd paidope .,
Atuo usappyd padopy



Page 33

"POIUN0D USBq SBY Jeak By} Ut Jalje PaXoO| 8q O] PESESD PILD B YIYM UO LOISEDD0 jSB| au) AluO 1]

1102 YoJew LE 01 8002 iHdy | pouad au Ui pasIanal
uoISI08p BY) PeY 1Byl | L0Z YoIep LE 01 8002 iudy | pouad ayj Ul uoisioap uolidope ue ypm uaip|iyd ||e Sepnidut Jojelawnu

dope

‘sjuswaor|d WIBY LOYS JO Sa1as paaibe ue 1apun Jaye Peyoo| usIp|Iyo epnjoxe sainbly 'z
‘pBIUNOS UBBQ SBY 1Bk ay) Ul 18R PEX3OO| 8q O} PESESD PIIUD B YdIUM UO UOISRO20 ISB) 8yl AU °L

UoIRy LE 1B Ja1jE Payoo) | BUE 1s)) uolidope Joj padeid aiam Oum Uaip||ud paidope |2 8iojeiay) siJ0JBUILoUaD BY) b

‘SYIUOW | Z 0} JaYE Payoo| uaaq Jak 1ou pey oym Jo Jalje paxoo| Bulwodaq jo syjuow |z Uey) ssa) paoeid alam

Oym u0ISioap uondope JUBLND B UM | LOZ YAIB LE TB Ja)jB paxoo| uaspjiya (e PUE Jaye paxoo| Bujwooaq Jelje syjuow
12 uBYj ss8| page|d aiam oym jsJij uondope soj padeid aiam oym uaip|iyo paidope |[e eiojaiay) SiJojeiBWINU BYL E
“LLOZ U2IBIN LE T8 Syluow |Z Joj Jalje payoo| uaaq 194 Jou pey Jo uondope 1o pade(d

Buiaq pue Jalje paxooj aq 0} Builels usamlaq syluow | Z uey) ssa| peliem Aauy) j| pabibe|) are ualp|iyD ‘papnoul e Bjep
PileA Yym ueupjiyo AjuQ "uoiidope Joj juswade;d Jiay) pue Ja)je paxoo| 8q o) Bulels pliyd B usamieq pPaleNd[ed sf Bl g

Byl se 0] pausal s syl souaurwuad Joj uondo pauajaud ayl s uondope uayp ‘(pasianal uaaq sey Jdope o} uoIsIDep
ay) a1eym asouy) Buipnioxs) | 102 UeW LE 1. ueld uondope JUaLNd B UM uaip)iyd |(e PUE uondope Jiay) Joud Aj@yeipawiu

mc 1 'L 102 YOIBW LE O} 8002 __.a< 1 vocma ayy ut co_m_oou co:aoum ue E_; cm_n_.cu __m mons_uc_ J01BUNLIOUSD mc 1 w

mﬁu opom

3 8|ge1 Ul punoj eq
ued saInby jeuoneN

[ULYSXap
C\owo—oow\mn_w\m_o

L3V 8|ge) ul punoy
aq urd pajdope
SI9M OYM UIP|IYD
1O laguinu 8y

cl0e _2 Smo

¢10c uwuniny
wioJ} BjqelieAe

aq (M

¢loe Jojereq

1102

o_.om

moowm

a9

:omm

?,r«ﬁ» 3i:

oy hoﬁo_u:_

1102 sv ._286:_

‘Aep 1saseau ay) o} papunos aJe saunbily g
‘paAieoal sem AIUOUYINE LNOD 810j8q PAYIIEW BIaM OYM Usip|iud o] paubisse si oJez jo awi v 'sieidope yim
Buiyoiew pue (Jepio Gu@alyapio Juswaseyd jo Bunueib) idope o) Aluouine unos Buiniasas uaamiaq pale|Naea i awl] 2

uojjdope Joj pace|d aiam Jeyl | L0Z U2Ie LE O 800Z Iudy | uo__on_ Y} Ul pajdope UBIP|IYD (€ SapNjou| J0jedIpul SuL |

uondope 1o} paoe|d B19M JBU} | 102 UDIBW LE O 8002 Iudy | pouad au) Ul pejdope UaIP|IU2 e SAPN|aU! JOIRaIPUI SILL ‘|
: . ; oo (SAED) AfjuR) aAitdOpE U O} YOTEW € UO BUMIIAP AlIOYINe ud0) 8

‘Aep 1saseou ay) o) papunol aie sainbi4 ‘g
‘papnioul aJe ejep
pifeA yim ua:piiya Aug “uondope Joj luawaded J1ayl pue 18lje payoo| ag o} Buiiels pjya B usemiaq peje|NafEd S awl| g

‘uonidope Jiay) o) Joud Ajajeipawwi|

uoiidope o) padeid 818M {BY) L L0Z UDJB LE O} B00Z _ﬁz 1 pouad ay) u| uaaonn BB e SBPULIOTEIIPU SUL 1

SARD} pejdopy

13V 8qe) ui punoj
aq uea pajdope
alaM OuM UBIDIILD
|0 JBquInu ay|
[Wigsxep
WSZ0T005/a35/8a
JAERBTE0SI /T AGD T |

Hﬂmgg

2102 uwniny
W0y} B|qe|BAR
aq (Im

N_._cw..ohn-mn_

2102 uwnny|
paysiand | woy; aiqeiee|
‘uoljdope Jlaul o) Joud Ajareipaww Japio Bujeal) Jjo Jepio Jusweded e uo pue|  Apuauna jou ae aq |m
»e.&: ?s__eu_..: 2102 ) Eteq
DUE w - 4= 10 NG

L102

0102

BIED Gl

6002

L102!

JUNYs'Xop; g1L0Z uwmny
ul/920100S/H4S/90; Wwoi sige|reae
g%mlc aq |m
| - 210z 10} ereq 1102 0102 6002 1102! tv d0jedipul
- 2 B | eboessed pue pajdo QUINU) @489 Lo} ST zn.ﬂr ¥
“UCISIJBP UONCOPE JUaund B ylim ! |
| {
[
‘ueid uondope 2102 uwniny |
paysiignd| wouj ajge|eAe | |
Apuawuno Jou ae aq |m i _
sainfy Buikyepun| 2102 Joj Bieg 1102 0102 6002/ LLOZ| £V Jojedipu|
Ajjure) DAAOPE 10U} L Ui BulAOW PUR 213 LIOMIAA SUIIOUL L7 UBUL SS3] LIEM O URPIIL2 §0 8DeIL32,9d PUS AGUING 3t

:8” nq..oﬁo__.s

LY 101edipu)



Page 34

‘ueyd uoijdope ay) se o] pauajal si siy} asusuewuad
Jjoj uondo pauejaid ay) s uolidope UBUAA 'L 102 U2selW LE e uondope Joj padejd ueaq JOU pey oum pue | 102 Yaiew

IE 1B 6:@ vmxoo_ s Ew_s _m£ 1 SN Yo _m mc__uco .mm; ul _._m_n _...Q,n_oom ue yum cm_u___..o Ire mwn_.;uﬂ_ B_mu_ucq syl —_

‘perenut sey Ajuouine jeool ay) yodium sbuipaasord aied jie sapnoul Ajjeoo} sbuipeadord esed Jo yibus| ebelare ayj v
‘pouad sy ) pas|dwos suoneddde sied uo paseq aie sebeiaay ‘pouad awl) pe)osIas ayl
ul SO uo pejeidiios uonesydde eiep 0} UNOD By} 0} uohedldde ared jO Sjep WOl PAIRNDIED Si uopeINp aied afelony '

‘elEP SIY) 0) Sarepdn Juanbasgns JO 8sea|d) JO BUL) BU) I J0) PAJUNOIOR 8q |IM SaLue ore| Aue
pUB Wa]SAS Al B SI SIND UBIPJIYD 8idnnW 9A[0AU) UBD uonedydde uy ‘uoieddde 8ed e Si jusWwaINSesL Jo Jiun 8yl "2

G s Soasait e

‘sjuawaoe|d Wis) LOYS JO sa11as paviBe ue lepun 1ae POX00| UBIP(IYo 8pnioxe sainbl4 2
‘PBIUNOD USDY SBY 1Bk By} Ul Ia)e umv_oo_ 34 0} paseso EEo © co_Es UO UOISEI00 158 m£ Auo 1

‘.maE:c MO| .E Usz
1M JoTRUILIOUSD ay) uay) uopeindod ared J18y) Ul UBIPHYUD JIUUS AJucuNL pUB Yoe|q jo uojtodoid Mo} B seY AJLoYINE [B00}
B jl 910}018U | "peidope a1e oym aieo Bulaeaj uaip|iyd JuYle Ajoult pue ¥aeiq {fe Jo uojuodoid syl mous sabewsoled v

10UM LBIPHIYD | opnioxa sainbi4 "ANDILYIG UMOUY B UM UBIPHUD SIYAM-UOU {2 0} Si8ja) iuuld AjLiouiu pue yoelg,

‘eare azocwsm _moo_ sy} _o apIsINo mc:ou ul mom_a mV_E co_Es mmc_uwmuo._a 180 mc_c:_o:_ .

Amzov EQm\Am Ememmmcms_ mwmo JEUONBU SSBOIBD) BY1 WO} nmu;oa aie mmSm_n_ P

‘areo Buiaes) uo eby ' i

"POUIBIGO JOU JO PAsn}al Sem z_o_c_.zw [

‘sjuawieoeld Wi} HOYS JO Sapas paaibe Ue JOPUN JOye PaXOO0| UBIP|IYD apn|oxe sainbily .N

| z102 uwmny|

paysignd, woyy ajqejeAs|

Apuauno jou aue|

sigepeAe Ajongnd
10U Apusund

aq |

mm._z?_ mca_._muc_-. N _.oN _o_ m_mn__

c¢Loc sunr
wojj a|qe|iene
39 M

2102 10} eleg

1102 0102

kb oA }.r¢ o ﬁam mu L8 T 15 I#ﬁu s

2102 uunmny
woyy sjqejieAe

2q M
210¢g 10} EleQg

33 O &

2102 uwnny
wio)j sjqefese
aq fim

2v 101e01pui




Page 35 Agenda ltem 7
X

‘/’?

Haringey
Report for: Corporate Parenting Item 3
Advisory Committee number
Title: Annual Report of the Fostering Service

Report authorised Debbie Haith

by :

Lead Officer: Janice Darling

Ward(s) affected: Report for Key/Non Key Decision:

1. Describe the issue under consideration

This report provides a description of the structure, aims and duties of the
fostering service and details the performance of the service over the last 12
months in addition to outlining key service improvements.

2. Introduction

The fostering service is located within commissioning and placements which
provides a range of foster placements for children in care. The fostering team
assess and support these task centred foster carers as well as Kinship foster
carers where children and young people are placed by the local authority within
their family network (family or friends). The fostering service also assesses and
monitors Private fostering arrangements.

At present the service functions are provided by four teams, there are plans for
a reorganisation of the service for efficiency, which will see the formation of just
two teams with existing staff. One team will focus on recruitment and
assessment and one team will provide intensive support to all of our foster
carers. This new structure will be implemented by October 2012,

Page 1 of 12



Page 36

X
>

Haringey
The activities of the service are governed by the Fostering Regulations. National
minimum standards 2011 and are regularly inspected by Ofsted. The last Ofsted
inspection of the service in 2010 found the service to be satisfactory.
The fostering team works together with partners across the children and young
people’s service as well as with health and education partners to achieve best
outcomes for children and young people in foster placements.

Present Service Structure

Head of Service

Senior Team Manager

Learning and Development manager ( P/T)

1x Team manager under 11s Team and 5 x SWs

1x Team Manager over 11s Team /Private Fostering and x 3 SWs

1x Team Manager Kinship and Long Term Team and 5 x SWs

Vacant Team Manager Recruitment and assessment Team (pilot scheme) 1x
SW

Structure for the new service
Head of Service

Deputy Head of Service

Learning and Development Manager
Team managers (2)

Practice Managers (2)

Social workers (14)

Assistant social workers (2)

3. Background information
Recruitment

The fostering service is engaged in advertising in order to recruit foster cares in
partnership with the marketing and communications team.

Our marketing strategy is developed based on a gap analysis (services we have
not been able to provide at the levels required) analysis of the previous years
performance data and cost effectiveness of the marketing activities.

Our target was to provide 48 new foster placements over 3 years. We have
focused on recruitment of 20 new households to include white UK carers and
provide placements for sibling groups.

The marketing strategy provides details of the recruitment activity which
included stalls in the high street, talking to the public, leafleting public venues,
open information sessions, articles and adverts in the press.

Page 2 of 12



Page 37

X

‘/’?

Haringey
We were supported in these activities by our foster cares.

The fostering website has been updated and we have produced an advert
featuring our Foster carers and staff providing information about fostering for
Haringey, which is now available on the Haringey website. We continue to
develop and maintain our partnerships with the North London Fostering
Consortium (NLFC) for advertising and pooling of resources. The NLFC website
was launched providing joint advertising.

We have produced a teenage foster carer recruitment film for information and
publicity as a joint venture with the consortium, without a collaborative approach
this would not have been possible. The film has been recognised by Fostering
Network, BAAF and DFE all of whom are interested in attending the launch.

Our ability to work collaboratively means we are able to host events and
activities that would be too financially restrictive as a single borough.

We share the delivery of prospective foster carers training to reduce the waiting
time for these courses; prospective carers are now able to attend any of the five
boroughs preparation groups.

There was some initial concern that we might loose prospective applicants to
other consortium boroughs in order to address this concern, we have an
agreement within the consortium that where applicants seek to change from the
authority where they have made their initial application, they will be required to
wait for 12 months before their application will be taken up by the new authority.
This approach has been successful, in that there have not been any applicant
withdrawals following training. However there is some flexibility and Fostering
managers may discuss taking over an application in certain circumstances i.e. A
Jewish applicant encouraged by Barnet to transfer to Haringey as we had
Jewish children to place.

Performance 1% April 2011 to 31 March 2012
Recruitment of task centred carers

The service received 318 fostering enquiries about fostering last year, from this
number 17 households were approved providing 26 placements. Of the
number approved three households were recruited from independent fostering
agencies. A majority of the new fostering carers live in Haringey. We have also
recruited carers who live in Enfield, Waltham Forest and Hackney ,

e Between the initial enquiry and information session — 41.85% drop out.
This is usually due to the applicants gaining further information about
what is expected and decide that fostering is not right for them.

Page 3 of 12



X

7’4

Haringey

Page 38

Between the information session and the initial visit — 55.87% drop out
At this stage the applicants have received more detailed information
about fostering and have had an opportunity to hear from an existing
foster carer and possibly an informal discussion with staff, providing
further clarity about the fostering task and criteria that has to be fulfilled.
The applicant may opt out at this stage or may have been advised by the
social workers to delay their application, i.e. an applicant due to have a
baby in 3 months would be advised to wait until baby is 9 to 12 months
old before apply again. Or the realisation that they will not be able to work
full time and foster.

Between the initial visit and preparation training group — 62% drop out —
In the main the fostering team will rule applicants out at this stage, having
visited their home and gathered personal information that may indicate
that they are unsuitable or it is not the right time for them to foster. There
are a range of reasons for ruling applicants out, these may be related to
their living conditions, the needs of their own children, or lack of initial
understanding of the challenges fostering may present.

The team are currently working on the development of a feedback tool, in
order to collate qualitative data to capture the reasons being provided by
applicants for withdrawing and reasons for social workers counselling
applicants out. This is being progressed as part of the service efficiency
review as outlined below.

17 applicants were ruled out or dropped out during the assessment
stage; this is 54.84% of people that started the assessment process.
Some applicants find the assessment process too intrusive or have a
change of mind or personal circumstances during the assessment
process. In addition on closer scrutiny the fostering service might
consider applicants to be unsuitable due to their attitudes or
understanding of children .

Processes

From the first phone call / contact to approval at the fostering panel
should be no more than 6 months

Information sessions are monthly

Initial assessments are carried out within 2 weeks of information session
( or sooner)

Preparation groups are available across the consortium monthly( 3 day
course)

The final assessment should take no longer than 3/4 months to complete,
however, this is dependent on the complexity of the family and any issues
of concern that may arise. The recruitment manager tracks and monitors
the team performance monthly. The comprehensive assessment and

Page 4 of 12



Page 39

X

7’4

Haringey

approval of applicants over the last year were in the main completed
within a 3- 9 month period .

e Two assessments were completed within 3 months, Three were
completed within 4 months, two within 5 months and four within 6 months.
There were a number of assessments that were outside of the 4 month
assessment period due to the complexity of issues and panel availability.
We have taken the step to increased the number of fostering panels each
month from one to two to minimise further delays of approvals .

e Fostering panels are now held twice a month

We are currently benchmarking our service against members of the consortium,
to develop and improve our performance. We are also gathering information
about the fostering population in Haringey, identifying the numbers of
Independent fostering agency foster carers and other local authority carers living
in Haringey. This data will help with our recruitment marketing strategy .

Only approving 17 new task centred last year meant that we were unable to
match our 2010/ 2011 performance (22 approved carers) The plans for the
restructuring of the service will increase the capacity for recruitment during the
coming year.

Key targets

e To provide additional foster placements to meet our target of 48
placements by 31% March 2014

e To reduce the number of applicant fall out at assessment stage.

e To continue to focus on recruitment for sibling groups,

White UK carers, Jewish carers for short term and long term placements,
carers for babies 0 — 2, teenagers and providing placements for more
troubled (challenging) children/ young people.

e Set up a remand foster placement scheme and parent and child
assessment placements (specialist carers) in partnership with NLFC.

e Progress plans for the introduce a carer scheme as we know that word
of mouth is a successful recruitment strategy, our carers will receive a
financial reward when one of the people they introduce is approved at the
fostering panel.

e Through the NLFC to utilise technology to reach a larger audience for
recruitment i.e. set up Facebook .

Foster Placements as at 15/ 8/ 2012

Active short term task centred carers

Page 5 of 12



Page 40

X

7’4

Haringey

Short term task centred foster carers care for children and young people on a
short term basis, until permanent plans are made for them. Therefore children
and young people could be in placement for a few days, a few months or 2 / 3
years depending on the circumstances of their individual situations. The
recruitment of carers as outlined above is in the main to recruit foster carers to
care for this group of children.

There are currently 82 fostering households on our register for children aged
under 11 years, 58 are actively fostering providing 68 placements.

There are 46 fostering households registered to care for young people aged 12
years and over, 26 fostering households are actively fostering providing 53
placements.

A total of 84 active fostering households providing 123 short term placements.

The above placement numbers ( 123) are not the maximum number of
placements available, some fostering households are approved and registered
for one child as they only have one bedroom. However on occasion if it is
considered to be appropriate they are able to provide placements for two
children from a sibling group, if it is appropriate for the children to share a
bedroom. We would not allow children who are unrelated to share a bedroom.

There are 46 carers who are not active at the moment, 21 fostering households
are to be de registered, reasons for de registration are varied, carers retiring,
illness, family commitments, moved away, in some cases the fostering service
do not feel that the carers are suitable to continue to foster.

There are 16 fostering households who are taking a break from fostering but
remain registered. Reasons for this include, having a recovery period due to
illness, moving house, travelling abroad, maternity period. Of this number there
are 3 carers who have chosen to provide supported lodgings to the young
people in their care in order that they are able to continue to live in the fostering
household post 18. All of these carers will return to fostering at some stage.

There are 9 fostering households that are not active due to concerns about
standards of care provided to children formerly in placement. This ranges from
carers management of behaviour, health and safety in the fostering household,
failure to comply with the requirements of the fostering regulations. The fostering
team will work with these carers to improve their practice. Some of these carers
will return to our active list and a number may be de registered.

The service strives to maintain the highest standards of care to children and will
challenge poor child care practice This actions has an impact on the foster
placement resources reducing the number of placements available for varying
periods of time.

Page 6 of 12



Page 41

X

7’4

Haringey
Over the last year we have not been able to recruit the numbers of fostering
households needed to offset the losses de to de registrations. However, with the
changes planned for the service our capacity to recruit will address this deficit.

Respite Foster carers

There are 8 approved respite Foster carers providing 14 respite placements.
These foster carers are those who show good potential as foster carers, but due
to work commitments or family commitments they are unable to provide a full
time fostering resource. They will only provide care to children or young people
who need a temporary placement for a week end or a week during school
holidays. A majority of our respite carers are teachers who work full time.

In addition respite carers may offer a regular break to our task centred carers
who may have challenging placements in order that they can have a break.

The 11 placements they provide are only available for very short planned
periods.

Long Term Foster Carers

There 18 Long term fostering households, some have been recruited as outlined
above. Some were previously short term task centred carers.

These carers make a commitment to care for a particular child offering
permanency until the child reaches the age of independence. These carers
often choose to provide supported lodgings in order for young people to remain
in the household post 18years. If young people do move on, long term carers
are matched to another child or young person.

Kinship Foster Carers Known as (Family and Friends Carers)

Kinship foster carers are not recruited as above, they put themselves forward to
care for children from within their family network. They are assessed by the
service as to their suitability to provide a placement for a child in care; they
account for 48 Fostering households providing 69 placements .Kinship care is
also governed by the fostering regulations.

Over the last year we have seen major growth and activity in our Kinship
placements when compared to the number of children being placed with
stranger carers. Currently there are 16 kinship assessments underway, with the
view to placing children if the carers are assessed to be suitable.

Kinship carers can present challenges for the service in that they do not always
willingly comply with some of the fostering requirements i.e. training or keeping

Page 7 of 12



Page 42

X

7’4

Haringey
daily records of the children’s activities. They see their role differently to that of
our recruited carers, some of our Kinship carers are the grand-parents of the
children placed. These aspects continue to be a challenge which is being
addressed by providing clearer information at the point of placement about
expectations and that they sign up to this at an earlier stage of the process.

Key Improvements

e We aim to increase the number of Kinship carers attending training and
completing the training and development standards.

Short Breaks (Family Link)

Although short breaks are governed by the fostering regulations, the Family Link
team is located within the Children with additional needs service.

There are 36 approved Family Link carers providing 57 overnight care
arrangements for children and young people, and 26 day care arrangements.

The children referred for short breaks have a range of additional emotional and
physical needs. Family Link carers are respite Foster carers and provide
overnight stays for some children and young people usually one weekend each
month or one overnight stay each week. Some carers take children into their
homes for day care and do not provide overnight s. Whatever arrangements
that will provide the support required by the child’s family is considered.

The service is presently under review, there has not been any advertising for
family link recently and only two short breaks carers were approved last year.
While short breaks are valuable for some children and young people, the service
provides a range of alternative supports for families, providing a choice of
resources available to them.

Key Improvement

e To give further consideration to the integration of Family Link carers into
the fostering service for recruitment assessment and support.

Support provided to carers

All Haringey foster carers have a named supervising social worker who visits
them regularly, to monitor their care of children and young people and provide
support. There is an active foster care association who provide emotional and
practical support to their peers. Our focus is placement stability, reducing
placement moves and improving outcomes for children. Foster carers have
direct access to local partners in health and education who also provide them
with advice and support.

Page 8 of 12



Page 43

X
>

Haringey
We have developed a more holistic approach to supporting foster care families
recognising the role our foster carers children play in the fostering household
and the emotional impact of fostering for them.
The Haringey Tavistock partnership has supported Foster carers as well as their
children to manage the emotional impact of caring for some very traumatised
children and young people. We are required to provide foster placements for
children and young people who present challenges and or have a range of
complex needs, we support our carers to meet these challenges, our behaviour
management policy has been updated and behaviour management training for
all carers is being delivered.

We provide advice and guidance outside of office hours. Within the new service
structure the Assistant Social Workers will work more intensively with carers
around behaviour management techniques and provide additional guidance as
required.

Key Improvement

e The fostering service restructure will provide more intensive support to
carers.

e To further develop work with the Haringey Tavistock partnership to
address the support needs of our foster families and their development of
understanding of the emotional impact of trauma for children and young
people; aid children placement stability and the development of
resilience for looked after children.

Foster carers Learning and Development

The fostering service learning and development manager takes a lead on all
learning and development for our carers. The learning and development
strategy is based on the requirements of the fostering standards, analysis of
learning evaluations and outcomes (carers practice). Training is very important
in order for foster carers to manage the challenges being presented by children
and young people. Carers usually complete all of the core/ mandatory training
within 2 to 3 years of fostering (child protection first aid National minimum
standards etc.)

We have recently considered a range of methods through which to support our
carers learning. We are promoting a more individualised learning programme,
which focuses on further development of their knowledge and experience in
areas of their interest and areas specific to the needs of the child or young
person in placement.

We recognise the diverse range of our carers learning styles and have
encouraged a wide range of learning methods i.e. focused reading,

Page 9 of 12



Page 44

X

7’4

Haringey
observations, opportunities for on line learning and supporting carers to access
training together with social worker s i.e. LSCB courses.

Sixty one of our carers have completed TSD’s (training and development
standards) so far.

Key improvements

e Further develop methods through which to measure the integration of
learning in to our carers practice

e Supporting and development of carers literacy and IT skills to promote
better educational outcomes for children and young people and to ensure
they are safeguarded.

Fostering Panel

The Haringey fostering service has a fostering panel that consider and make
recommendations to the agency decision maker about, the applications of all
prospective foster carers and the re-approval of existing foster carers. The
panel also have a quality assurance role. The work of the panel is governed by
the Fostering Regulations 2011. In line with good practice, we have an
independent chair, two departmental members and four independent panel
members, two with fostering experience, one foster carer and one member
who has been in foster care.

We are required to maintain a central list of people able to sit at panel when
needed to ensure the panel is quorate and to provide professional advice as
required. We have a central list that includes suitable independent members, as
well as a Haringey councillor, legal and medical advisors.

Over the last year the Panel meetings have increased from one meeting each
month to two meetings each month in order to meet the demands of the service.

The panel has two business meetings and two training events each year.
Individual panel members are able to access the NLFC training as required.
Each panel member is appraised each year by the panel chair and there are
regular feedback meetings between the panel chair and agency decision maker.

Complaints decision made

There were no referrals to the Independent review mechanism the regulatory
body which hears appeals from applicants and existing foster carers who were
not recommended for approval by the panel and agency decision maker.

Page 10 of 12



Page 45

X

7
Haringey
Key target for Improvement
e To support the work of the panel, we continue to recriut panel members
for our central list from education and health.

Complaints ( Foster carers)

There were 10 complaints / allegations which resulted in 2 de registrations.
Eight carers are being reassessed as the allegations were related to standards
of care. The behaviour management policy guidance and training and more
support from the service will improve the standards of practice in our fostering
households.

Complaints about the service

There were 10 complaints these included the length of time it has taken to
conclude investigations, (as above) delays related to payments, service
changes i.e. De-commissioning of the computer services and complaints about
social workers. In the main the complaints about social workers have been
related to social workers challenging standards of practice. The service reviews
complaints, learns from them and makes adjustments and improvements.

Private fostering (PF)

Private Fostering is governed by the Private Fostering Regulations 2009.
and the services to Private fostering arrangements regularly inspected by
Ofsted. The responsibility for Private fostering is held within fostering service.

Where a child or young person is not related to their care givers, are under the
age of 16 years and live in the household of their care giver for a period of 28
days or more, this is considered to be a private fostering arrangement. These
children are considered to be “children in need”. The private foster carers and
or the parents of the child have a responsibility to notify the local authority of
this private fostering arrangement. Professionals also have a duty to inform the
local authority ( Private fostering team) of any arrangement they may encounter
in the course of their duties that they consider to be a private fostering
arrangement.

The fostering service completes the child in need assessment and an
assessment of the suitability of the private foster carer.

All private fostering arrangements have an allocated supervising social worker
who visits to monitor the arrangement and provide advice and support to private
foster carers. Private foster carers have access to our in house foster carers
training i.e. Safe care and first aid behaviour management etc.

There are currently 18 private Fostering arrangements being assessed and
supported by the fostering service.

Page 11 of 12



Page 46

X

‘/’?

Haringey

Under the private fostering regulations the fostering service is required to raise
awareness about private fostering amongst the public and professional groups.
The team has held briefing sessions for professionals (education, housing, and
health partners) Held public information sessions and had stalls in the high
street and at community events to raise awareness.

The service works closely with the marketing and communications team, who
have produced publicity materials for raising awareness (which have been
commended)

The information booklets for private foster carers and parents and booklet for
professionals have been updated.

There is an improvement action plan for private fostering outlining key
improvement targets

Service Efficiency Review

As part of the preparation for restructuring of the service a major review of our
service efficiency has been undertaken in order to ensure that the service is fit
for purpose in the new structure i.e. Services delivered in a timely way, systems
in place for collection of data to support performance management.

All staff have been consulted and involved in this review for ownership of
improvements.

Key Service Improvements

A service improvement plan is being constructed; a steering group has been set

up with representations from across children’s services which includes health

and education partners to contribute to planning and improvements:

Prepared for a short notice Ofsted inspection.

Service is fit for purpose

Increase the number of in house fostering resources

Further develop joint initiatives through the NLFC

Systems in place to encourage and support better outcomes for children

Improve consultation methods and collection of qualitative data to be

drawn from foster carers, children in care, foster carers own children,

private foster carers, kinship carers and children in kinship placements to

better evidence outcomes.

¢ Improve the collection of performance management data

¢ Restructure of the service to improve efficiency of fostercarer recruitment
and support.

Page 12 of 12



Page 47 Agenda Item 8
h

‘/74

Haringey
Report for: Corporate Parenting Item
Advisory Committee number
Title: Draft Permanency Policy

Report authorised Libby Blake Director of Children and Young People’s

by : Service

Lead Officer: Debbie Haith Deputy Director of Children and Families

Ward(s) affected: All Report for Key/Non Key Decision:
N/A

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Children Act 1989 Guidance and Regulations sets out the clear
expectation that Local Authorities should where necessary secure
permanent care arrangements for the children in its care. This has been
strengthened in the revised regulations 2010.

“Permanence is the framework of emotional permanence (attachment),
physical permanence (stability) and legal permanence (the carer has
parental responsibility for the child) which gives a child a sense of
security, continuity, commitment and identity. The objective of planning
for permanence is therefore to ensure that children have a secure, stable
and loving family to support them through childhood and beyond.

Permanence provides an underpinning framework for all social work with
children and families from family support through to adoption. One of the
key functions of the care plan is to ensure that each child has a plan for
permanence by the time of the second review, as set out in the statutory
guidance to the 2002 Act. Achieving permanence for a child will be a key
consideration from the day the child becomes looked after.”

1.3 The Children and Families Service has developed the basis for a policy
document to support social work staff in their work to assist families and
safeguard children effectively, providing the current guidance in the document

Page 1 of 17



X

‘/’?

Haringey

1.2

1.3

2.1

Page 48

attached as an appendix to this report. All major Council Strategies and Policies
must be considered by the Cabinet, and so the work to date has been brought to
the Cabinet Lead Member for Children for her early advice on the opportunity for
local emphasis in the policy.

The Lead Member for Children wishes to review this document with the benefit
of advice from the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee to ensure that the
Policy that underpins the work of the service contains a policy steer that is
distinctively local to Haringey. The Committee is therefore asked to commit to
dedicating some time over the course of this year researching and considering
the issues with the support of officers to ensure that our policy direction fits our
local area well and resonates with the ethos of the Council.

Areas that might be suitable for further consideration and a policy steer to the
service are:

The priority to be given to inter-country adoption

The place that Special Guardianship should have in securing permanent
placements for children.

The balance to be struck in securing permanency in extended family placements
as opposed to the use of families with no prior link to the child .

Are there any characteristics of our local population to which additional attention
must be paid when considering decision making for children requiring
permanent alternative families.

Recommendation
That the Committee agrees to make this area a priority for further exploration in
its meetings during the Autumn of 2012 with a view to informing the

development of a clear policy statement on how best to secure permanent
placements for children within the care system.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 Draft Permanency Policy

Page 2 of 17



Page 49

.
7
X
/?
Appendix 1

DRAFT

Permanency Policy

Children and Young People’s Services

August 2012

DRAFT

Page 3 of 17



Page 50

X

‘/74

Haringey

Document Control

Version Status Author

August 2012 Chris Chalmers,

Head of Service, Children In Care;
Children and Young People’s Service

Document Objectives:
This document describes our approach to ensure permanent placements for ‘looked after’
children or a child who may become ‘looked after’.

Intended Recipients:
All Children and Families division staff

Monitoring Arrangements:
Regular case reviews through staff supervision and the Independent Reviewing Service.

Training/Resource Implications:
All staff in Children and Families Division will be made aware of their role and for
implementing this policy. A series of training days are in place.

Approving Body and Date Approved Directorate Management Group
Directorate Management Team
Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee,
Decision Taken by lead member xx

Date of Issue August 2012

Scheduled Review Date February 2013 (six month review)
February 2014 (on an annual basis)

Lead Officer Chris Chalmers,

Head of Service, Children In Care

Path and file name

Contents
1. INtrodUCHION ... 6
2. Scope and DefinitioN...... ... 6
X0 R N | 7
4. Roles and responsibilities ...........ooouuiiiii e 7
5. Thelegal CoNteXt.... ... 9
G T o 4T g e o] [ 10
7.  Planning for permanencCe.............oooiveiiiiiiii e 14
8. Equalities and diVErsity .......ccoooooioiiieeeeee e 15
0. AU e nnne 16
10, TrAINING oo 16
11, REVIEW e 16

Page 4 of 17



Page 51

X

‘/’?

Haringey
12. Appendix A: Legislative and Regulatory Framework

Page 5 of 17



X

>

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

Page 52

Introduction

This policy sets out Haringey Council’s commitment to ensuring that all
children in our care are given the opportunity to live safely and securely in
a family. It describes our approach to planning for permanent placements
for ‘looked after’ children or a child who may become ‘looked after’
because the parents are unable to meet the child’s long term needs.

We believe that the most appropriate place for most children to live is with
their own birth families. To this end, Haringey provides a variety of services
to support families including the provision of accommodation to children for
short periods away from their families to relieve stress or help the family
cope with a crisis, short breaks for disabled children, parenting support
services delivered through children’s centres and extended schools.

Where parents are unable to meet the needs of a child, Haringey will
assist, wherever possible, in securing a placement within the child’s wider
family.

Where it is not possible for children to live with their families and they are
looked after by the local authority, (or at risk of becoming looked after), the
highest priority is to secure a permanent stable placement as speedily as
possible which meet the child’s needs.

This policy is linked to our Corporate Parenting Strategy.

Scope and Definition

This policy covers all ‘looked after children’ living in Haringey.

Where children cannot return to their own family plans will be made for an
alternative family placement, which may include adoption, or, for older
children, a stable foster placement to prepare the young person for
transition to adulthood. Consideration will first be given to securing
permanency through adoption or special guardianship but where this is not
considered to be the most appropriate plan for a child, a permanent
placement with foster carers will be sought.

A permanent placement describes a specific family or care setting where a
child is expected to live for the duration of his/her childhood. The intention
is to provide a framework of emotional, physical and legal conditions that
give a child a sense of security, continuity, commitment and identity.

Page 6 of 17



X

‘/’?

Haringey
24

2.5

Page 53

This may include an arrangement in which the local authority exercises
Parental Responsibility under the terms of a court order. It will also include
children who are looked after by agreement with their parents or any other
person who holds parental responsibility.

The strategy encompasses all working practices that underpin the
achievement of plans for permanence for children looked after by the
London Borough of Haringey. The intention is to achieve consistency in
this work area across all sections of the Children and Young People’s
Service. This policy will influence work by all professionals with children,
their families, foster carers and adopters.

Aim

The aim of this policy is:

Aim

To provide high quality permanency plans for our looked after children,

3.2

4.1

4.2

which ensure that if they cannot live with their own family they will
have the best chance of an alternative permanent family home

The policy sets out a set of principles and values which will prevent drift
and delay in permanence planning for children, in order to effect
permanent placement as early as possible for children who cannot remain
at home.

Roles and responsibilities

The Lead Member:, as a member of the Council Executive, has political
responsibility for the leadership, strategy and effectiveness of local
authority children’s services. The LMCS is also democratically accountable
to local communities and has a key role in defining the local vision and
setting political priorities for children’s services within the broader political
context of the Council. (Ref: Statutory guidance on Roles and
Responsibilities of DCS and LMCS)

The Director: The DCS has professional responsibility for the leadership,
strategy and effectiveness of local authority children’s services. The DCS
is responsible for securing the provision of services which address the
needs of all children and young people, including the most disadvantaged
and vulnerable, and their families and carers. (Ref: Statutory guidance on
Roles and Responsibilities of DCS and LMCS)

Page 7 of 17



Page 54

X

‘/’?

Haringey

4.3 Deputy Director, Children and Families: is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of this policy across the Children and Families Service and
with relevant partners.

4.4 Head of Service for Children in Care: is responsible for monitoring and
ensuring the effectiveness of permanency planning within the scope of the

policy.

4.5 Deputy Head of Service for Children in Care: has responsibility for
ensuring high standards of practice and timeliness in the implementation of
this policy.

4.6 Casework supervising managers: have responsibility to lead on care
planning for children taking into account relevant research and current best
practice including ensuring timely permanency planning.

4.7 Social workers will obtain the views of the child and all relevant family
members and take these into account in developing the care plan and
undertaking the actions required to progress the permanency plan.

4.8 The child’s independent reviewing officer has a key role to provide
independent review, advice and challenge to the plan and advocacy for the
child.

The statutory duties of the IRO are to:

1. monitor the performance by the local authority of their functions in relation
to the child’s case;

2. participate in any review of the child’s case;

3. ensure that any ascertained wishes and feelings of the child concerning
the case are given due consideration by the appropriate authority; and

4. Perform any other function which is prescribed in regulations.

The primary task of the IRO is to ensure that the care plan for the child fully

reflects the child’s current needs and that the actions set out in the plan are
consistent with the local authority’s legal responsibilities towards the child.

Page 8 of 17



X

‘/’?

Haringey

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

Page 55

The legal context

Local authorities may only intervene in ‘family life’ in specific
circumstances. Any intervention must be necessary and proportionate
and in accordance with law.

In many cases, the local authority will work with parents by agreement to
secure the welfare of a child. In some cases, it will be necessary to seek
an order from a family court.

A child may become ‘looked after’ by a local authority:

¢ With the agreement of the parents/any person with parental responsibility
(section 20 Children Act 1989)

e Under an emergency protection order which lasts for a maximum of 15
days (section 44 Children Act 1989)

e Under an interim care order which can be renewed (section 38 Children
Act 1989)

e Under a care order which lasts until the child is 18 unless discharged
earlier or replaced by another order (section 31 Children Act 1989)

¢ With the independently witnessed agreement of any parent with parental
responsibility to placement for adoption (section 19 Adoption and
Children Act 1989)

e Under a placement order which permits the authority to place the child for
adoption (section 21 Adoption and Children Act 2002)

In accordance with the Care Planning, Placement and Review Regulations
2010, there must be a care plan for every child who is looked after. By no
later than the second statutory review, the care plan must include a plan
for permanency. The second statutory review must take place within 4
months of the child becoming looked after.

Permanency plans may include:

¢ The return of the child to the care of both parents or one parent

¢ The placement of the child with a relative or friend or other person
connected to them

¢ The placement of the child with adopters

¢ The placement of the child with long term foster carers

The legislative and regulatory framework for the permanency policy is
listed in Appendix A.

Page 9 of 17



Page 56

X

‘/’?

Haringey

6. Principles

6.1 The principles below are inherent to the full range of permanency options
in situations where a child cannot remain at home.

Principles

e All children have a right to a family life.
e Where possible, this should be within the child’s birth family.

e Where it is not possible for children to live with their birth parents,
alternatives within their wider birth family or family friends should be
explored.

e Where children need to be looked after by the local authority they must be
placed within a safe, stable and loving alternative family

e Decisions about the permanent placement of children will respect the
child’s ethnic origin, cultural background, religion and language. The
needs of children with additional needs and disabilities will be taken in
account as part of the planning and matching process. There must always
be due regard to the need to avoid delay in striving to meet these needs.

e The wishes and feelings of every child must be respected. Every young
person has a right, commensurate with their age and understanding, to
participate in decision making about where they should live on a
permanent basis and the degree of contact they should maintain with their
birth family.

e The views of parents must be considered whenever possible.

e Every young person must have support services available to meet their
assessed needs.

e Every young person must have readily available assistance in the event of
difficulties or placement breakdown.

e Every young person must have information about how to make complaints
or representations if required and how to access advocacy services.

Page 10 of 17



Page 57

X

7’4

Haringey

Living with relatives or friends

6.2 All children who are believed to be at risk of significant harm will be the
subject of a core assessment. If the core assessment concludes that the
child cannot safely remain at home, every effort must be made to identify
whether the child can be safely placement with relatives or family friends.
This will be either as an interim measure to facilitate a return home or —if a
return home is clearly not in the child’s best interests — as the preferred
permanency option. Social workers will establish at an early stage which
friends or relatives might be available to care for a child and will undertake
an assessment of their ability to care for the child in conjunction with the
Kinship Team. This will, avoid the kind of delays which can occur during
court proceedings where this work has not been done. (See Kinship Care
Policy under development)

Adoption
6.3 Adoption remains the most appropriate and legally secure plan for a very
young child who cannot remain with their birth parents

6.4 Adoption transfers parental responsibility for the child from the birth
parents and others who had parental responsibility for the child, including
the local authority, permanently and solely to the adopter(s). The
adopters legally become the child’s parents. The order lasts for the whole
of the child’s life. The child will cease to be looked after by the local
authority.

6.5 Research strongly supports adoption as a primary consideration and as a
main factor contributing to the stability of children, especially if under four
years of age, where rehabilitation to family is not possible. Adoption is also
be the right plan for older children in some circumstances.

Special Guardianship

6.6 Special Guardianship addresses the needs of a significant group of
children who need a sense of stability and security but where the absolute
legal break with their birth family that is associated with adoption does not
meet the child’s needs. It also provides an alternative for achieving
permanence in families where adoption, for cultural or religious reasons, is
not an option.

6.7 A special guardianship order gives parental responsibility to the special
guardian. The parents do retain parental responsibility but their ability to
exercise this is extremely limited. The intention of the order is that the
special guardian will have sole responsibility for all the day-to-day
decisions regarding the care of the young person. The order will last until
the child is 18 unless discharged earlier. The child will cease to be looked
after by the local authority.

Page 11 of 17



X

7’4

Haringey
Residence Order

6.8

6.9

Page 58

A Residence Order may be used to increase the degree of legal
permanence in a placement within the wider family network or with a foster
carer (as, of course can Special Guardianship) where this would be in the
child’s best interests.

Residence orders give parental responsibility to the person named in the
order. The parental responsibility is shared with the parents who must be
consulted about key issues such as education. The order will last until the
child is 18 unless discharged earlier. The child will cease to be looked
after by the local authority.

Long term or permanent foster care
6.10 Long term, or permanent, fostering may be the appropriate choice for a

6.11

significant proportion of older children. It provides an appropriate family
environment in which to meet the child’s permanence needs. Where it is
necessary that a child continues to be looked after by the local authority,
permanent fostering may meet the child’s needs for security, continuity,
commitment and identity. Fostering has been proven to be particularly
appropriate for older children who retain strong links to their birth family
and do not want or need the formality of adoption.

It is important that the local authority formally agrees to the placement
becoming a long term placement.  For all children under the age of 13
years the formal decision is ratified by the Agency Decision Maker after
consideration and recommendation made by the Adoption and
Permanency Panel. The intention will be for the placement to continue until
the child is 18. The child will continue to be looked after by the local
authority.

Residential care

6.12 It is recognised that residential care can provide a positive environment for

some children for time limited periods, however children must only be
placed in a residential establishment as an exception. Where such a
placement is made it should usually be no more than one year in duration
and it is not accepted that residential care will be a permanency option. In
any situation where a young person’s needs would be best met in
residential care for longer than a year, agreement must be given by the
relevant Head of Service.

Ceasing to be ‘looked after’
6.13 Where a child will cease to be looked after by the local authority, ie through

adoption or special guardianship or residence order, the applicants need to
have a clear understanding of the long term implications of this. They
need to be aware of their increased responsibility for the child in their care

Page 12 of 17



Page 59

X

‘/’7’4

Haringey
and fully understand and accept that they are taking on the role of a
parent.

6.14 For all above orders independent legal advice may be made available to
the prospective carers as part of their preparation.

Page 13 of 17



X

7’4

Haringey

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Page 60

Planning for permanence

A set of procedures has been devised, further to guidance that is already
available for staff, in order to inform the achievement of appropriate
permanent outcomes for all children without undue delay.

Social workers who undertake assessments of a child’s needs in relation to
permanency plans must ensure that they are outcome focused. The first
assessment to be undertaken will be the core assessment which will
underpin early decision making for all children’s permanency plans. They
must include consideration of stability issues, including the child’s and
family’s needs for long term support and the child’s needs for links with
birth family, including contact with his or her parents, siblings and wider
family contact. Social workers must ensure that the child’s permanency
plan is clearly linked to previous and current assessments of the child’s
needs. This will include any assessments made by independent experts
within court proceedings.

Before a decision can be made to permanently place a child outside his or
her family careful assessment must be made of the feasibility of returning
the child, either to the care of parents or family and friends. Such
assessments take time. All steps have to be taken, without pre-judging the
outcome of assessments, to put alternative plans in place to minimise
delay. It is essential that a family group conference is arranged as part of
this assessment.

There can be unintended consequences of sequential planning, elongating
the process of securing a permanent family for a child. The prevention of
delay is assisted by social workers making use of parallel planning. Where
children are subject to care proceedings this type of planning will be
required as part of the care plan. Parents, children and young people must
be kept informed and involved at each stage of decision making in a way
that is appropriate to their age and understanding.

Assessment of sibling groups must be undertaken to establish the extent
and quality of relationships in a sibling group in order to assess whether or
not they should be placed together. It is important to ascertain the
perceptions and wishes of the child and their family, to assess the shared
experience of siblings and each of the children’s individual permanence
needs. Siblings who are looked after should be placed together whenever
possible although it is recognised that in some cases this will not be
appropriate.

Page 14 of 17



X

7’4

Haringey
7.6

7.7

7.8

8.1

8.2

Page 61

Joint placement should therefore be strongly encouraged but not assumed
as placement together is not the only way to maintain sibling relationships.
Where brothers and sisters are not placed together arrangements should
be made as part of each child or young person’s care plan to enable the
brothers and sister to live together providing this meets the assessed
needs of each child. It is important to assess the extent and quality of
relationships in a sibling group. Usually, and especially where there is a
pre existing and meaningful relationship, it will be important to actively
seek to maintain sibling relationships within any permanency plan.

Research with regard to sibling placements emphasises that the most
enduring relationships people have are likely to be with their siblings. The
impact on separated siblings of losing vital support, a shared history and
continuity can be detrimental to children’s continued stability in substitute
family placements. More successful outcomes frequently occur for children
who are placed with their siblings. Children should, therefore, be placed
with their siblings unless there are exceptional circumstances, such as
dysfunctional interaction that cannot be remedied, incompatible needs or
where the lack of a suitable placement would lead to unacceptable delay.

Contact must primarily be for the benefit of the child rather than the parents
and other significant adults. Appropriate contact plans can be integral to
the success of any permanent placement. Contact, in whatever shape or
form, can provide an opportunity for a young person to make sense of their
history and their current placement. It can avoid myths building up about
the birth family and strengthen a child’s ability to make sense of their
history. However research indicates that for some children contact can be
traumatic and serve to reinforce abuse they have suffered. Very careful
assessment, observation and regular review of contact is essential.

Equalities and diversity

Recording of equalities data is mandatory under the Equality Act 2010.
Ofsted requires equalities monitoring data on age, sex, race and disability.

In order to meet the needs of children and young people in Haringey,
Framework-i also allows for the collection of data on religion. Hence the
following information should be included in case records:

¢ Data relating to: age, sex, race, disability, religion

e The communication and language needs of service users and carers
should always be considered; for example where a child, young
person or their carer may need interpreter, written material in an
alternate format or a language other than English.

Page 15 of 17



Page 62

Haringey

¢ Arrangements should be made for advocates, interpreters, relatives or
friends, to assist any child, young person or carer where necessary.
e The Commissioning and Placements Service must ensure, through
recruitment and commissioning arrangements, that there are sufficient
placements to meet the permanent placement needs of all looked after
children.

9. Audit

9.1  We will audit and monitor the implementation of the permanency policy to
ensure that the care provided to individuals is achieving the aims and
desired outcomes.

9.2 We will carry out quality assurance and audit checks through:
e Monitoring of all children’s permanency plans through the monthly
Permanency Tracking meetings
¢ Adoption and Permanence Panel
¢ Regular case reviews
e Supervision arrangements and audit processes across the Children and
Families Division which underpin continuous service improvement.

10. Training

10.1 All staff in Children and Families Division will be made aware of their role
and for implementing this policy.

10.2 Workshops have taken place across the entire Children and Families
Division to take place from May 2012 onwards. These will continue on a six
monthly basis. Colleagues from legal services, virtual school and LAC
health will assist in conveying the key principles and raising the profile of
permanency planning.

11. Review

11.1 An initial review of the new policy and procedures will be led by the Deputy
Director, Children and Families, in February 2013.

11.2 Following that review, the policy will be reviewed annually (or sooner if new
legislation, codes of practice or national standards are introduced) to
ensure that the care provided to children and young people is still
achieving the desired outcomes.

Page 16 of 17



Page 63

X

‘/’?

Haringey

12. Appendix A: Legislative and Regulatory
Framework

The legislative and regulatory framework for the permanency policy is listed
below:

Children Act 1989

Human Rights Act 1998

Adoption and Children Act 2002

Children Act 2004

Special Guardianship Regulations 2005 and Guidance
Children and Adoption Act 2006

Care Planning, Placement and Case Review Regulations, 2010
National Minimum Standards Fostering 2011

Adoption National Standards 2011

Adoption Guidance 2011

Fostering Service Requlations 2011

Family and Friends care — statutory guidance 2011

Page 17 of 17



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 65 Agenda ltem 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Performance Management: children and families
	performance report
	adoption scorecard

	7 Annual report of the fostering service
	8 Draft Permanency Policy
	10 Fostering marketing and recruitment plans
	Fostering Activity Plan 2011 Appendix 21
	Fostering marketing  Activity Plan 2012-13 Appendix 3[1]


